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ABOUT OUR REPORT

Chemung Financial Corporation, by way of the Chemung Canal Trust Company, was born of a spirit of inde-
pendence and leadership. The independence evolved through a commitment to the principles of the organiza-
tion, while the leadership rose from a vision of success.

Robert Reich, the economist and a former secretary of labor, said, “A leader is someone who steps back from
the entire system and tries to build a more collaborative, more innovative system that will work over the long
term.” The Chemung Financial Corporation uses this combination of collaboration and innovation to structure
how we work with our clients on their personal and corporate finances; how we partner with our communities
on their quest for economic growth; and, how we support our non-profit partners in their need for financial, vol-
unteer and leadership support.

If, according to Peter Drucker, “management is doing things right” and “leadership is doing the right thing,”
then at Chemung Financial Corporation we have the necessary combination of leaders and managers to envi-
sion and to realize success for our shareholders, clients and employees.

Within the pages of this annual report, you will see that Chemung Canal Trust Company and CFS Group, Inc.,
are “learning” organizations. That is, they do not put their energies into creating and perfecting elaborate plans.
Rather, they build the knowledge, expertise and leadership to formulate visionary plans with practical deploy-
ment. It is also the charge of these leaders to keep the plans flexible and versatile to facilitate proactive
approaches to emerging opportunities.

Chemung Financial Corporation’s most rewarding years still lie ahead. We know that, as a locally owned and
operated community bank, we have the best chance of making a difference in the quality of life afforded to our
employees and clients. When we say that we are “At the Center of Your Community,” we intend to back up our
words with actions that highlight leadership, commitment, independence and vision.

DIVIDEND INVESTMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN
Registered shareholders of Chemung Financial Corporation,
through the Dividend Investment and Stock Purchase Plan,
may invest their dividends or make quarterly cash payments
to purchase additional stock of the Corporation. Shareholders
not enrolled in the plan may receive a descriptive brochure
and authorization card for the plan upon written request to the
Corporation’s Secretary at the following address:

Chemung Financial Corporation
Attn: Corporate Secretary

PO. Box 1522

Elmira, New York 14902-1522
www.chemungcanal.com

FORM 10-K ANNUAL REPORT

A copy of the Corporation’s Form 10-K Annual Report is avait-
able without charge to shareholders after March 31, 2003,
upon written request to the Corporation’s Secretary at the
address noted adjacent.

ANNUAL MEETING
The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held on
Thursday, May 15, 2003, at 7:00 p.m. in the Clemens Center.

Design: Jim Pryslak, Pryslak Design, Elmira, NY
Photography: Frank Borkowski, Foto Forum, Corning, NY



To ensure that Chemung Financial Corporation remains a strong

and independent financial services organization; < To enhance the

value of our shareholders’ investment; © To develop and deliver

quality financial services and maintain high standards of business

ethics and community leadership; - To respond to the financial

needs and wants of each economic level within the communities we

serve; and ° To provide a supportive and rewarding environment for

cur employees.

Quality relationships are our core competency, and will lead to

Chemung Financial Corporation’s becoming the premier financial

services provider in cur markets.




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS CHEMUNG FINANCIAL CORPORATION

{in thousands, except per share data)

OPERATING RESULTS-YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Non-interest income:
Securities {losses) gains, net
Trust & Investment Services income
Other operating income
Other operating expense
Net income

AT YEAR END:

Assets

Loans, net of deferred fees and costs, and unearned income
Allowance for loan losses

Deposits

Shareholders” equity

Employees (full time equivalent)

SHARE AND PER SHARE DATA:
Net income

Book value, at year end
Tangible book value, at year end
Dividends declared

Shares outstanding (average)

RATIOS:

Allowance to total loans
Return on average assets
Return on average Tier I Equity

TRUST ASSETS UND=R ADMINISTRATICN
(Market Value)

As Fiduciary

As Custodian

MARKET PRICES OF CHEMUNG FINANCIAL CORPORATION
STOCK DURING PAST THREE YEARS (DOLLARS)

1st Quarter

2nd Quarter

3rd Quarter

4th Quarter

DIVIDENDS PAID PER COMMON SHARE BY CHEMUNG
FINANCIAL CORPORATION DURING PAST THREE YEARS

January 2
April 1
July 2
October 1

2002 2001 % of Change
$ 27,128 $ 27,430 -1.10%
3,283 1,100 198.45%
-459 491 -193.48%
4,488 4,537 -1.08%
6,292 5,180 21.47%
25,405 24,052 5.63%
6,540 8,493 -23.00%
$ 751,171 $ 725,072 3.60%
432,294 423,755 2.02%
7,674 5,077 51.15%
541,765 520,687 4.05%
79,427 79,162 0.33%
311 315 -1.27%
1.66 2.10 20.72%
20.66 19.66 5.09%
19.60 18.55 5.67%
0.92 0.90 2.22%
3,928 4,051 -3.04%
1.78% 1.20%
0.88% 1.18%
9.45% 12.49%
$ 818,810 $ 927,937 -11.76%
396,077 446,681 -11.33%
$1,214,887 $1,374,618 -11.62%
2002 2001 2000
28.05~-29.70  19.25 - 20.50 18.00 — 24.50
28.25-28.85  19.05 - 23.65 19.00 - 21.50
28.00-28.70  22.80-29.00 19.13 - 20.50
23.00-28.20  28.00 - 30.00 19.25 - 19.75
2002 2001 2000
0.230 0.220 0.210
0.230 0.220 0.210
0.230 0.220 0.210
0.230 0.230 0.220
0.920 0.890 0.850

As of December 31, 2002 there were 684 registered holders of record of the Corporation’s stock. Chemung Financial Corporation common stock is inac-

tively traded in the over-the-counter market.

The quarterly market price ranges for the Corporation's stock for the past three (3) years are based upon actual transactions as reported by brokerage
firms which maintain a market or conduct trades in the Corporation’s stock and other transactions known by the Corporation’s management.



MESSAGE TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

JAN P. UPDEGRAFF, PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Leadership, by design, permeates this annual report. Our intent in focus-
ing on this attribute is to emphasize the important role that leadership, its
development and its responsibility play in every aspect of our organiza-
tion. In this we believe we echo Norman Schwarzkopf: “Leadership is a
combination of strategy and character.”

At Chemung Financial Corporation, we made the decision four years ago to position ourselves “At
the Center of Your Community.” This branding and positioning came out of a desire to evolve the
definition of excellence in corporate citizenship: to support our communities by remaining profitable
so that we could contribute financial support, and by developing leaders so that we could contribute
strategic support.

Our position “At the Center of Your Community” also helps us fulfill our mission to our three major
stakeholders: the owners of our common stock; the clients who continue to look to us for support dur-
ing demanding times; and, our employees with whom we join to stand tall in providing that support.
With this commitment, we are telling these groups that we are deliberately focusing upon ensuring that
the communities we serve can look to a rewarding future with the best possible quality of life. This
focus requires commitment to our vision that relationships are an integral part of “who we are” and
that our leadership must be evident wherever we endeavor to serve.

It is because we are so intertwined with our stakeholders that, in 2002, local and global economic
challenges were reflected in our financial position. Operating results for 2002 were mixed but generally
strong and we are proud of our accomplishments during a year in which the business environment was
indeed challenging. Net profits were $6.54 million compared with $8.49 million in 2001. Earnings per
share declined 21.0% from $2.10 to $1.66 for the 12-month period. Dividends declared were $0.92
vs. $0.90, on fewer average shares outstanding. Net profits for the fourth quarter of 2002 were $1.60
million vs. $1.66 million in 2001. Earnings per share, however, increased from $0.41 to $0.42, also on
fewer average shares outstanding as we continued our two-year share repurchase program that began
n May 2001.

While our commercial lending activity was influenced by selectively weak demand for the products of
a few large manufacturing clients, we noted continued high demand for 1-4 family mortgage loans,
home equity loans and other consumer loans. Our business environment during 2002 was character-
ized by a capital spending recession with thus-far moderate implications for consumer spending.
During the third quarter, however, the weakness in orders to the manufacturing segment of our com-
mercial loan business was the leading factor in our decision to significantly increase the provision for
loan losses. During the year, the provision totaled $3.3 million, an increase of $2.2 million over 2001.
It is important to understand that we are working with these clients and making every effort to help
them look forward to a future in which they can thrive. We believe that this is how responsible com-
munity-oriented financial institutions should behave during such times. While the provision to the
allowance for loan losses reflects the increased difficulties faced by our business stakeholders, actual
business loan losses did not increase during 2002.



Also during the third quarter, a $2.5 million par corporate bond was written down to 51 percent

of face value in response to the downgrading of its investment-quality rating. This write-down
resulted in a $1.0 million charge to pre-tax earnings. The increased loan loss provision, combined
with the corporate bond write-down, negatively impacted our 2002 net profits by about $1.9 mil-
lion or $0.49 per share. During the first quarter of 2003, the market value of the corporate bond
recovered to 85-90 percent of face value, reflecting partial resolution of liquidity issues faced by
the issuer of the bond.

For concrete proof of our commitment to the future, one need only look at our present facilities
and our future plans. During 2002, we fully renovated the first floor of our home office at One
Chemung Canal Plaza. The renovations were completed during the fourth quarter and the grand
opening was held on the evening of November 20th. Noted art collector Robert Rockwell of
Corning, NY, loaned us many original Western Art paintings and sculptures from his personal
collection for the occasion, and they will remain on display throughout the current year. This
gesture is particularly significant in that Mr. Rockwell, 91, previously loaned his paintings and
sculptures to us on the occasion of the opening of the new main office in 1971. They were well
received then and are every bit as popular today.

Turning from our physical facilities to our greatest assets — our people — our corporate team is
involved in leadership roles throughout our communities. They delivered financial support during
2002 to over 2235 not-for-profit organizations with total amounts exceeding $350,000. During
May, we sponsored the twenty-fifth annual running of our signature special event, the Elmira-
Thon. Toward the end of 2002, we decided that going forth we would place our 25 years of
Elmira-Thon expertise and volunteer efforts with the annual Susan G. Komen Race for the Cure
in support of this organization’s efforts to one day eradicate breast cancer. We believe that sup-
porting the running community, while contributing volunteers and funds to this important chari-
ty, is more closely aligned with our mission today.

As we look ahead, our intention is to build upon the characteristics that have always made our
company of special significance throughout our market area:

e Our commitment, to enhance the quality and value of our services to our stakeholders;

¢ QOur independence, to ensure that we can continue our tradition of community support to
help the local condition prosper; and,

e Qur vision, to initiate growth and to make our communities even better places to live and work.

Each segment of our stakeholders today enjoys a combination of diverse and healthy businesses;
first-rate two- and four-year educational institutions; healthcare facilities of the highest quality;
truly fine, well-endowed performing and fine arts institutions; and, a workforce possessing the
highest technical skills. The Chemung Financial Corporation Board of Directors, Executive
Management Team and our over three hundred employees are well represented in the leadership
of these areas so vital to our future.

Jan P. Updegraff
President and
Chief Executive Officer
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Melinda A. Sartori Ronald E. Allison Louis C. DiFabio
Executive Vice President Vice President Vice President
Trust & Investment Marketing Department Commercial Loan Department

Services Division

Pamela D. Burns Christopher J. Seymour

Assistant Treasurer Assistant Treasurer
Trust Operations Division Investment Services Division
Retirements New Board Member

)
A

John E. Burke, Vice President William A. Tryon William D. Eggers
Commercial Loan Department Trayer Products Senior Vice President &
Retired on July 1, 2002, after Retired after 28 years General Counsel

37 years of service of board service Corning Incorporated






Chemung Canal Trust Company is proud to support

in Chemung, Schuyler,
Steuben and Tioga counties through ~ efforts
and monetary support. As a community bank,
Chemung Canal is set apart from other financial serv-
ices providers by the fact that its employees live, invest,
donate and volunteer in the same locales as they
work. When we say that we are “At the Center of
Your Community,” we are making a to
remain strong and ndependent, so that you can
continue to have a financial services provider that not
only ~ its role in your community, but

understands yours as well.




We know that leadership is very much related to

change. As the pace of change accelerates, there

is naturally a greater need for effective leadership.

Jobn Kotter
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

THE PURPOSE OF THIS DISCUSSION IS TO FOCUS ON INFORMATION ABOUT THE FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS OF CHEMUNG FINANCIAL CORPORATION. REFERENCE SHOULD BE MADE TO THE ACCOMPANYING
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (INCLUDING RELATED NOTES) AND THE SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA PRESENTED
ELSEWHERE IN THIS REPORT FOR AN UNDERSTANDING OF THE FOLLOWING DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statements included in this discussion and in future filings by Chemung Financial Corporation (the “Corporation”) with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, in Chemung Financial Corporation press releases, and in oral statements made
with the approval of an authorized executive officer, which are not historical or current facts, are “forward-looking state-
ments” made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1993, and are sub-
ject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from historical earnings and those
presently anticipated or projected. Chemung Financial Corporation wishes to caution readers not to place undue reliance
on any such forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date made. The following important factors, among
others, could cause Chemung Financial Corporation’s actual financial performance to differ materially from that expressed
in any forward-looking statement: (1) credit risk, (2) interest rate risk, (3) competition, (4) changes in the regulatory envi-
ronment, and (5) changes in general business and economic trends. The foregoing list should not be construed as exhaus-
tive, and the Corporation disclaims any obligation to subsequently revise any forward-looking statements to reflect events
or circumstances after the date of such statements, or to reflect the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events.

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Chemung Financial Corporation through its wholly owned subsidiaries, Chemung Canal Trust Company (the “Bank”) and
CFS Group, Inc. (a financial services company), provides a wide range of banking, financing, fiduciary and other financial
services within its local market areas.

Management defines the market areas of Chemung Canal Trust Company as those areas within a 25-mile radius of its
branches in Chemung, Steuben, Schuyler, and Tioga counties, including the northern tier of Pennsylvania. The Corpora-
tion’s lending policy restricts substantially all lending efforts to these geographical regions.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Critical accounting policies are those most important to the portrayal of the Corporation’s financial condition and results
of operations, and those that require management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgments. Management considers
the accounting policy relating to the allowance for loan losses to be a critical accounting policy given the inherent uncer-
tainty in evaluating the level of the allowance required to cover probable credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio, and the
material effect that such judgments can have on the Corporation’s results of operations. While management’s current evalu-
ation of the allowance for loan losses indicates that the allowance is adequate, under adversely different conditions or
assumptions, the allowance would need to be increased. For example, if historical loan loss experience significantly wors-
ened or if carrent economic conditions significantly deteriorated, additional provisions for loan losses would be required

to increase the allowance. In addition, the assumptions and estimates used in the internal reviews of the Corporation’s non-
performing loans and potential problem loans, and the associated evaluation of the related collateral coverages for these
loans, has a significant impact on the overall analysis of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. While management
has concluded that the current evaluation of collateral values is reasonable under the circumstances, if collateral evaluations
were significantly lowered, the Corporation’s allowance for loan losses policy would also require additional provisions for
loan losses.

All accounting policies are important, and as such, the Corporation encourages the reader to review each of the policies
included in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements to obtain a better understanding of how the Corporation’s
financial performance is reported.

MANAGEMENT OF CREDIT RiISK — LOAN PORTFOLIC

The Corporation manages credit risk, while conforming to state and federal laws governing the making of loans, through
written policies and procedures; loan review to identify loan problems at the earliest possible time; collection procedures
(continued even after a loan is charged off); an adequate allowance for loan losses; and continuing education and training
to ensure lending expertise. Diversification by loan product is maintained through offering commercial loans, 1-4 family
mortgages, and a full range of consumer loans.



The Corporation monitors its loan portfolio carefully. The Loan Committee of the Board is designated to receive required
loan reports, oversee loan policy, and approve loans above authorized individual and Senior Loan Committee lending lim-
its. The Senior Loan Committee, consisting of the president, two executive vice presidents, credit services division manager,
commercial loan manager, consumer loan manager, mortgage loan manager and credit manager, implements the Board-
approved loan policy.

COMPETITION

The Corporation is subject to intense competition throughout the southern tier of New York State and the northern tier

of Pennsylvania in the lending and deposit gathering aspects of its business from commercial and thrift banking institutions,
credit unions and other providers of financial services, such as brokerage firms, investment companies, insurance companies
and Internet vendors. The Corporation also competes with non-financial institutions, including retail stores and certain
utilities that maintain their own credit programs, as well as governmental agencies that make available loans to certain
borrowers. Unlike the Corporation, many of these competitors are not subject to regulation as extensive as that of the Cor-
poration and, as a result, they may have a competitive advantage over the Corporation in certain respects. This is particu-
larly true of credit unions, as their pricing structure is not encumbered by income taxes.

Competition for the Corporation’s fiduciary services comes primarily from brokerage firms and independent investment
advisors. This is considered to be significant competition, as these firms devote much of their considerable resources toward
gaining larger positions in these markets. The market value of trust assets under administration totaled $1.2 billion at year-
end 2002. Relative to the Corporation’s consolidated assets, the Trust and Investment Division is unusually large and is
responsible for the largest component of non-interest revenue.

EMPLOYEES
The Corporation and its subsidiaries had 311 full-time equivalent employees (FTE’s) on December 31, 2002, versus 313 at
the beginning of the year and 308 on December 31, 2000. The employment trend is relatively stable.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

During 2002, total assets grew by $26.1 million or 3.6% to $751.2 million as compared to $725.1 million as of year-end
2001 and $676.2 million at year-end 2000. Total loans, net of unearned income and deferred fees and costs, grew by $8.5
million or 2.0% to $432.3 million. While the weakness in the economy impacted commercial loan volume as compared to
a year ago, we continued to see a steady volume of new requests, with business loans, including commercial mortgages,
growing $9.2 million or 4.9%. Significant growth was also achieved in our home equity portfolio, as outstanding loans
increased $3.9 million or 8.2%, attributed to the lower interest rate environment throughout 2002. The growth in the
above areas was offset to some extent primarily by a $4.4 million or 6.0% decrease in consumer installment loans. This
decrease is related primarily to a decrease in indirect auto loans outstanding, impacted in large part by an extremely com-
petitive pricing environment, including captive automobile financing companies offering 0% financing for terms up to

5 years.

The carrying value of the total securities portfolio increased $18.7 million or 7.6%. At amortized cost, the portfolio was up
$14.8 million, this period-end increase resulting primarily from investments during December 2002 totaling nearly $34 mil-
lion, including federal agency bond purchases of $10.0 million and mortgage-backed securities purchases of $20.5 million.
Unrealized appreciation related to the available-for-sale portfolio increased $4.0 million, reflective of the impact that lower
interest rates have had on the bond portfolio.

Another significant change in assets was the $2.7 million increase in premises and equipment. The major capital investments
during 2002 included renovations to our main office first floor, as well as the purchase of a new mainframe computer sys-
tem and trust department operating system. These investments are part of an ongoing commitment to provide the highest of
quality service to both existing and new clients.

Primary funding sources for our asset growth during 2002 included an increase in deposits, as well as an increase in
advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank. In total, deposits increased $21.1 million or 4.0% from $520.7 million to
$541.8 million. While period-end public funds deposits (primarily local municipal deposits) were down $3.2 million, all
other personal and non-personal balances increased $24.3 million. Much of this growth, excluding public-fund balances,
was in personal and non-personal savings accounts, up $9.5 million or 10.3% from year-end 2001 to year-end 2002,
insured money market accounts, up $12.7 million or 35.5% and certificate of deposit balances {including IRA accounts),
which increased $6.2 million or 3.2%. Period-end personal and non-personal non-interest-bearing demand deposits were
down $3.1 million or 2.9%. Federal Home Loan Bank advances were up $3.2 million due to an increase in overnight
advances under our line of credit.




20

Com-

BALANCE SHEET COMPARISONS o Change pounded
0

{in millions) 2001 to Growth
AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 2002 5 years
Total Assets $745.9 718.6 667.0 642.3 584.0 539.2 3.8% 6.7%
Earning Assets (1) 686.1 658.8 617.4 591.6 531.2 490.9 4.1% 6.9%
Loans, net of deferred fees and

costs, and unearned income 428.8 416.4 382.8 346.5 311.7 291.3 3.0% 8.0%
Investments (2) 257.3 242.4 234.6 245.0 219.5 199.8 6.1% 5.2%
Deposits 545.7 533.7 515.2 494.1 467.2 450.2 2.2% 3.9%
Wholesale funding 105.5 92.9 71.8 66.6 37.0 13.1 13.6% 51.8%
Tier | equity {3) 69.2 68.0 62.9 57.6 52.6 51.6 1.8% 6.0%

(1) Average earning assets include securities available for sale and securities held to marturity based on amortized cost, loans net of deferred origina-
tion fees and costs and unearned income, interest-bearing deposits, and federal funds sold.

(2) Average balances for investments include securities available for sale and securities held to maturity, based on amortized cost, and federal funds
sold and interest-bearing deposits.

(3) Average shareholders’ equity less goodwill, intangible assets and accumulated other comprehensive income/loss. c
om-

pounded
%Change Annual
2001 to Growth

ENDING BALANCE SHEET 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 2002 5 years
Total Assets $751.2 725.1 676.2 653.6 620.1 545.5 3.6% 6.6%
Earning Assets (1) 686.3 662.8 619.2 597.6 563.5 486.1 3.5% 7.1%
Loans, net of deferred fees and

costs, and unearned income 432.3 423.8 394.6 360.0 329.3 296.9 2.0% 7.8%
Allowance for loan losses 7.7 5.1 4.7 4.7 4.5 4.1 51.0% 13.1%
Investments (2) 266.2 247.5 230.7 237.1 243.3 196.8 7.6% 6.2%
Deposits 541.8 520.7 511.4 481.8 466.1 451.0 4.1% 3.7%
Wholesale funding 113.3 112.1 77.9 94.2 71.4 205 1.1% 40.8%
Tangible equity (3) 75.4 74.7 69.3 59.7 59.9 54.8 0.9% 6.6%

(1) Earning assets include securities available for sale and securities held to maturity based on amortized cost, loans net of deferred origination fees
and costs and unearned income, interest-bearing deposits, and federal funds sold.

(2) Investments include securities available for sale, at estimated fair value, securities held to maturity, at amortized cost, federal funds sold and inter-
est-bearing deposits.

(3) Shareholders’ equity less goodwill and intangible assets.

SECURITIES

The Board-approved Funds Management Policy includes an investment portfolio policy which requires that, except for local
municipal obligations that are sometimes not rated or carry ratings above “Baa” but below “A” by Moody’s or Standard

& Poors, debt securities purchased for the bond portfolio must carry a minimum rating of “A.” Marketable securities are
classified as Available for Sale, while local direct investments in municipal obligations are classified as Held to Maturity.
The Available for Sale portfolio at December 31, 2002, was $257.2 million compared to $239.1 million a year earlier and
$222.7 million at the end of 2000. At year-end 2002, the total net unrealized appreciation in the securities available for sale
portfolio was $12.5 million, compared to $8.5 million a year ago. This change is primarily reflective of the impact that
lower market interest rates had on the fair value of the bond portfolio. The components of this change are set forth below.

SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE

2002 | 2001
{in thousands) 2002 2002 Unrealized | 2001 2001 Unrealized
Amortized Estimated Appreciation Amortized Estimated  Appreciation
At December 31 Cost Fair Value  (Depreciation) Cost Fair Value (Depreciation)
Obligations of U.S. Government
agencies $ 70,425 71,840 1,415 98,866 100,129 1,263
Mortgage-backed securities 136,559 140,009 3,450 92,539 92,993 454
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions 16,990 17,934 944 17,497 17,729 232
Corporate bonds and notes 13,712 14,785 1,073 14,705 14,831 126
Corporate stocks 6,939 12,586 5,647 6,982 13,455 6,473
Totals $244,625 257,154 12,529 230,589 239,137 8,648




Included in the preceding table are 20,815 shares of SLM Corp. (formerly USA Education, Inc.) at a cost basis of approxi-
mately $2 thousand and estimated fair value of $2.162 million. These shares were acquired as preferred shares of Student
Loan Marketing Association (“SALLIE MAE”), a permitted exception to the Government regulation banning bank owner-
ship of equity securities in the original capitalization of the U.S. Government Agency. Later, the shares were converted to
common stock as SALLIE MAE recapitalized. Additionally, at December 31, 2002, the Corporation held marketable equi-
ties totaling $616 thousand at cost, with a total estimated fair value of $4.064 million. The shares, other than SLM Corp.,
were acquired prior to the enactment of the Banking Act of 1933.

Non-marketable equity securities included in the Corporation’s portfolio are 10,781 shares of Federal Reserve Bank stock
and 56,625 shares of the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock. They are carried at their cost of $539 thousand and
$5.663 million, respectively. The fair value of these securities is assumed to approximate their cost. The number of shares
of these last two investments is regulated by regulatory policies of the respective institutions.

ASSET QUALITY

Non-performing loans at year-end 2002 totaled $12.994 million as compared to $5.633 million at year-end 2001, an
increase of $7.361 million. This increase in non-performing loans is reflective of the impact that a weak economy through-
out 2002 had on certain of our commercial clients. Loans in non-accrual status increased $7.855 million due primarily to
the addition of three commercial relationships totaling $8.439 million as of December 31, 2002. It is the Corporation’s pol-
icy that when a past due loan is referred to legal counsel, or in the case of a commercial loan which becomes 90 days delin-
quent, or in the case of a consumer, mortgage or home equity loan not guaranteed by a government agency which becomes
120 days delinquent, the loan is placed in non-accrual and previously accrued interest is reversed unless, because of collater-
al or other circumstances, it is deemed to be collectible. Loans may also be placed in non-accrual if management believes
such classification is warranted for other reasons. An increase of $3.304 million in troubled debt restructurings during 2002
was due primarily to the addition of one commercial mortgage totaling $3.0 million, which was restructured at market
terms in light of cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower, The appraisals of the properties securing this mortgage
indicate adequate collateral coverage, and we expect that with the restructured terms, the borrower will have the cash flow
necessary to amortize this obligation. Loans greater than 90 days past due and still accruing interest have decreased $3.798
million since year-end 2001, as a commercial relationship with a balance of $3.480 million at December 31, 2001, was
brought current during the fourth quarter of 2002. This relationship is well collateralized, and we anticipate that going for-
ward, the borrower will generate the cash flow necessary to service these loans.

NON-PERFORMING ASSETS
The following table summarizes the Corporation’s non-performing assets (in thousands of dollars):

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Non-accrual loans $ 9,345 1,490 1,078 640 4,458
Troubled debt restructurings 3,382 78 405 470 86
Accruing loans past due 90 days or more 267 4,065 224 281 395
Total non-performing loans $12,994 5,633 1,707 1,391 4,939
Other real estate owned 406 82 62 536 651
Securities on non-accruatl 1,288 - - - -
Total non-performing assets $14,688 5,715 1,769 1,927 5,690

Information with respect to interest income on non-accrual and troubled debt restructured loans for the years ended
December 31 is as follows (in thousands of dollars):

2002 2001 2000

Interest income that would have been recorded
under original terms $882 104 118
Interest income recorded during the period 862 102 89
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In addition to non-performing loans, as of December 31, 2002, the Corporation has identified 19 commercial relationships
totaling $8.131 million in potential problem loans, as compared to $7.049 million (16 relationships) at December 31, 2001.
Potential problem loans are loans that are currently performing, but where known information about possible credit prob-
lems of the related borrowers causes management to have serious doubts as to the ability of such borrowers to comply with
the present loan repayment terms, and which may result in the disclosure of such loans as non-performing at some time in
the future. At the Corporation, potential problem loans are typically loans that are performing but are classified in the
Corporation’s loan rating system as “substandard.” Management cannot predict the extent to which economic conditions
may worsen or other factors which may impact borrowers and the potential problem loans. Accordingly, there can be no
assurance that other loans will not become 90 days or more past due, be placed on non-accrual, become restructured, or
require increased allowance coverage and provisions for loan losses.

Given the increased level of non-performing and classified relationships, and in recognition of the increased inherent risk of
loss in the current loan portfolio, the Corporation increased its provision for loan losses during 2002 to $3.283 million as
compared to $1.100 million during 2001, an increase of $2.183 million. The allowance for loan losses is an amount that
management believes will be adequate to absorb probable losses on existing loans. Management’s evaluation of the adequa-
cy of the allowance for loan losses is performed on a periodic basis and takes into consideration such factors as the histori-
cal loan-loss experience, review of specific problem loans (including evaluations of the underlying collateral), changes in the
composition and volume of the loan portfolio, overall portfolio quality, and current economic conditions that may affect
the borrowers’ ability to pay. At December 31, 2002, the Corporation’s allowance for loan losses totaled $7.674 million,
resulting in a coverage ratio of allowance to non-performing loans of 59.06%. However, included in this ratio is the $3.0
million restructured commercial mortgage which management believes has sufficient collateral and cash flow as of
December 31, 2002, to support the debt. Excluding this loan, the coverage ratio would be 76.79%. An internal review of
non-performing loans and the associated collateral coverage indicates that the current coverage ratio is adequate. Net loan
charge-offs were $686 thousand or 0.16% of average outstanding loans in 2002, compared to $731 thousand or 0.18% of
average outstanding loans in 2001. The allowance for loan losses to total loans at December 31, 2002 was 1.78% as com-
pared to 1.20% as of December 31, 2001.

SUMMARY OF LOAN-LOSS EXPERIENCE
The following summarizes the Corporation’s loan-loss experience for each year in the five-year period ended December 31,
2002 (in thousands of dollars):

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Allowance for loan losses at beginning of year $5,077 4,708 4,665 4,509 4,145
Charge-offs:
Commercial, financial and agricultural 136 139 65 38 13
Real-estate mortgages 23 5 4 12 16
Consumer loans 710 806 770 624 552
Home equity 11 - 14 16 13
Total 880 950 853 690 594
Recoveries:
Commercial, financial and agricultural 48 64 29 43 35
Real-estate mortgages 1 12 - - -
Consumer loans 145 143 117 130 123
Total 194 219 146 173 158
Net charge-offs 686 731 707 517 436
Provision charged to operations 3,283 1,100 750 673 800
Allowance for loan losses at end of year $7,674 5,077 4,708 4,665 4,509
Ratio of net charge-offs during year to average
loans outstanding (1) .16% .18% .18% 15% . 14%

(1) Daily balances were used to compute average outstanding loan balances.

The Corporation’s available-for-sale securities portfolio at December 31, 2002, includes an investment in a $2.5 million par
value corporate bond which was downgraded by nationally recognized rating agencies in July of 2002 to below-investment-
grade status. At that rime, it was determined that the resulting decline in the estimated fair value of the bond was other-than-
temporary, and accordingly, the bond was written down to its estimated fair value and placed in non-accrual status during
the third quarter of 2002. The write-down of the bond to 51.5% of par value resulted in a pre-tax charge to earnings dur-
ing the third quarter of $1.006 million, with the bond being carried at a value of $1.288 million as of December 31, 2002.
The bond was in non-accrual status at December 31, 2002, In early 2003, the bond traded at between 83% and 91% of
par value, and in January of 2003, the Corporation sold $1.0 million of this bond (carrying value of $515 thousand) at
85% of par value or $850 thousand, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $335 thousand. We will continue to monitor the trading
activity of this bond, as well as its rating.



CAPITAL RESOURCES AND DIVIDENDS

The Corporation continues to maintain a strong capital position. Tangible shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2002, was
$75.4 million or 10.03% of total assets compared to $74.7 million or 10.30% of total assets a year earlier and $69.3 mil-
lion or 10.24% at December 31, 2000. The major changes in tangible shareholders” equity during 2002 included an increase
in undistributed earnings {net income less dividends declared) of $3.0 million and a $2.4 million increase in accumulated
other comprehensive income due to the increase in net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities. The above were
somewhat offset by a $5.3 million increase in treasury shares, as we continued to actively purchase treasury shares under
our share repurchase program. As of December 31, 2002, the Corporation’s ratio of Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets
was 16.12% compared with 16.87% a year earlier. The Corporation’s leverage ratio (Tier I Capital/Average Assets) was
9.26% at December 31, 2002, and 9.86% at December 31, 2001.

Under Federal Reserve regulations (see Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements), the Bank is limited to the amount
it may loan to the Corporation, unless such loans are collateralized by specific obligations. At December 31, 2002, the
maximum amount available for transfer from the Bank to the Corporation in the form of unsecured loans was $1.8 million.
During 2002, there was one loan extended by the Bank to the Corporation in the amount of $300 thousand. This loan was
outstanding for a period of 14 days. There were no such loans extended during 2001 and 2000, and none are anticipated
during 2003. The Bank is subject to legal limitations on the amount of dividends that can be paid to the Corporation with-
out prior regulatory approval. Dividends are limited to retained net profits, as defined by regulations, for the current year
and the two preceding years. At December 31, 2002, $4.7 million was available for the declaration of dividends.

Cash dividends declared amounted to $3.549 million in 2002 versus $3.584 million in 2001 and $3.473 million in 2000.
Dividends declared during 2002 amounted to 54.3% of net income compared to 42.2% and 39.7% of 2001 and 2000
net income, respectively. The increase in the dividend payout ratio is related to the lower net earnings generated in 2002.
Despite these lower earnings, the strength of our capital position supported the dividends declared, and it is management’s
objective to continue generating sufficient capital internally, while retaining an adequate dividend payout ratio to our
shareholders.

TREASURY SHARES

When shares of the Corporation become available in the market, we may purchase them after careful consideration of our
capital position. On May 10, 2001, the Corporation announced that its Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up
to 400,000 shares, or approximately 10% of its outstanding common shares, principally through open market transactions
from time to time as market conditions warrant over a two-year period. During 2002, 187,812 shares were purchased at

a total cost of $5.333 million or an average price of $28.39 per share. Since the inception of the share repurchase program
in May of 2001, a total of 233,451 shares have been purchased, leaving the Corporation the ability to repurchase 166,549
shares as of December 31, 2002, under the current Board authorization. During 2001, 97,275 shares were purchased at a
total cost of $2.343 million or an average price of $24.09 per share, and in 2000 there were 19,068 shares purchased at

a total cost of $397 thousand (average of $20.83 per share).

PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

Consolidated net income for 2002 totaled $6.540 million versus $8.493 million in 2001, a decrease of $1.953 million or
23.0%. Earnings per share were down 21.0% from $2.10 to $1.66 per share on 122,690 fewer average shares outstanding.
In 2000, the Corporation earned $8.755 million. Dividends declared in 2002 totaled $0.92 per share versus $0.90 in 2001
and $0.86 in 2000.

Performance in 2002 was adversely impacted by the weakness in the local and national economies, and the impact of this
environment on our clients. As discussed in detail under the “Asset Quality” section of this report, this prolonged weakness
has had a significant impact on a number of our large commercial relationships, resulting in an increase in the level of non-
performing loans. In recognition of this, and after a thorough review of our loan portfolio, management decided to increase
the provision for loan losses by $2.183 million in 2002, from $1.1 million to $3.283 million, with $1.858 million of this
increase recognized during the second half of the year. Additionally, during the third quarter, as discussed under “Asset
Quality,” we recognized a $1.006 million pre-tax charge to earnings related to other-than-temporary impairment on a

$2.5 million par-value corporate bond. The increase in the provision for loan losses and the pre-tax charge to earnings that
resulted from writing down the corporate bond negatively impacted our 2002 net income by approximately $1.9 million

or $0.49 per share.

Net interest income before the provision for loan losses was down $302 thousand or 1.1%, despite a $27.3 million or 4.1%
increase in average earning assets. Total interest and dividend income on earning assets was $44.222 million in 2002, com-
pared to $49.122 million in 2001 and $47.978 million in 2000. Clearly, the $4.899 million or 10.0% decrease in 2002 can
be attributed to a 101-basis-point decline in average yield from 7.46% to 6.45%, reflective of the fact that interest rates
throughout 2002 were at 40-year lows. Factors related to the increase in average earning assets include a $12.4 million or
3.0% increase in average loans. During 2002, average commercial loans increased $9.2 million or 5.1%, with average
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mortgages showing a $5.9 million or 6.0% increase. Other significant growth was evidenced by a $4.2 million or 9.2%
increase in the home equity portfolio. The above growth areas were somewhat offset by a $7.0 million or 8.9% decrease

in average consumer installment loans. This decline related primarily to a lower volume of indirect retail automobile financ-
ing. In addirtion to the loan growth, the securities portfolio and federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits increased
on average $1.7 million and $13.1 million, respectively.

Total average funding liabilities during 2002 increased by $26.0 million or 4.1%. Average deposit balances during 2002
increased $12.0 million or 2.2%. While public fund average balances were down $22.3 million, other personal and non-
personal average deposit balances increased $34.3 million. Much of this growth ($25.5 million) was in personal account
balances, reflected primarily in higher average time deposits {+ $8.0 million), savings (+ $10.9 million), demand deposits
{(+ $3.8 million) and insured money market accounts (+ $2.0 million). Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
increased $16.6 million on average due primarily to an average increase in securities purchases funded by term repurchase
agreements entered into with the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York. The above increases were offset to some extent
by a $2.6 million decrease in average overnight borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank. Interest expense totaled
$17.094 million in 2002, as compared to $21.692 million in 2001, and $22.055 million in 2000. The $4.598 million or
21.2% decrease in interest expense during 2002 is again reflective of the lower interest-rate environment. While average
funding liabilities increased $26.0 million, the cost of these funds, including the effect of non-interest-bearing funding
sources (such as demand deposits), decreased 84 basis points from 3.44% to 2.60%. The net interest margin for 2002 of
3.95% was 21 basis points lower than the 2001 margin of 4.16%.

Non-interest income increased $115 thousand to $10.322 million, up 1.1% over 2001. The total increase was negatively
impacted by the above-mentioned corporate bond write-down of $1.006 million, which is reflected in net losses on securi-
ties transactions. Excluding the impact of that transaction, all other non-interest income was up $1.121 million or 11.0%.
Of this increase, $450 thousand is the result of higher pre-tax income from our equity investment in Cephas Capital
Partners, L.P. (“Cephas”). During the fourth quarter of 2001, we recognized a $550 thousand write-down of our equity
investment in this small-business investment company limited partnership, which resulted in a pre-tax loss on this invest-
ment of $269 thousand in 2001. This charge to earnings resulted from a large loan loss at Cephas. Because the Corpora-
tion’s percentage ownership in this partnership exceeds 20%, the equity method of accounting is utilized, such that the
Corporation’s percentage of the partnership’s income is recognized as income on its investment; and likewise, any loss by
the partnership is recognized as a loss on the Corporation’s investment. Income from this investment in 2002 totaled $181
thousand. Other areas that contributed significantly to the increase in non-interest income include service charges (+ $198
thousand), revenue from CFS Group, Inc. (+ $142 thousand), non-taxable gains on stock donations (+ $104 thousand),
checkcard interchange income (+ $87 thousand) and credit-card merchant earnings (+ $53 thousand). Trust and investment
services income, the largest component of non-interest income, was down $48 thousand to $4.488 million. Much of the
revenue generated in this area is based on asset market values, and this reduction is reflective of the market decline during
2002, much of which was offset by new business generated and fee increases instituted in the second quarter.

Operating expenses increased $1.353 million (5.6%) to $25.405 million. The area having the most significant impact on
the 2002 increase was salaries and benefits, which in total increased $456 thousand or 3.9%. Salaries and wages were up
$348 thousand or 3.8%, due primarily to regular wage increases. Pension and other employee benefits increased $109
thousand or 4.1%. This increase impacted significantly by a $494 thousand increase in the net periodic pension cost, from
a credic of $195 thousand in 2001 to an expense of $299 thousand in 2002. This increase is based upon an actuarial analy-
sis of future benefit obligations related to the plan, and the increase resulted primarily from the impact of a declining stock
market on asset values and a reduction in the discount rate used in calculating future benefit obligations, as well as higher
salaries. Based upon actuarial estimates for 2003, we do expect that the periodic pension cost during 2003 will increase
approximately $330 thousand as compared to 2002. During 2002, the Corporation was not required to contribute to the
plan. However, due to market performance, the funding position of the plan has deteriorated, and there may be a required
contribution during 2003. The increase in the pension cost during 2002 was offset to some extent by a $395 thousand de-
crease in incentive bonuses. Additionally, the 2002 operating expense increase includes a $327 thousand prepayment penal-
ty associated with the Corporation’s refinancing a $10 million Federal Home Loan Bank advance during the third quarter.
With interest rates at such low levels, management determined it advantageous to pay off an existing advance carrying a
rate of 4.90%, and refinance for a five-year term at a rate of 3.72%. This transaction will reduce 2003 interest expense by
approximately $118 thousand. Other major items impacting the operating-expense increase include depreciation expense

{+ $310 thousand) and donation expense (+ $102 thousand), this expense related to the non-taxable gains noted above.

In compliance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142, the Corporation has not incurred any amortization expense related

to goodwill during 2002. During 2001, this expense totaled $190 thousand.

The $1.770 million decrease in income-tax expense is the result of lower pre-tax earnings as well as a $145 thousand tax
deduction related to dividends paid or credited to our profit sharing, savings and investment plan participants, and $116
thousand in New York State Empire Zone real-property and tax-reduction credits.




Com-

% pounded
Change  Annual
2001 to  Growth

EARNINGS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(in thousands) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 2002 5 years
Net interest income $27,128 27,430 25,923 25,449 23,733 23,274 -1.1% 3.1%
Provision for loan losses 3,283 1,100 750 673 800 850 198.5% 31.0%
Net interest income after provision

for loan losses 23,845 26,330 25,173 24,776 22,939 22,424 -9.4% 1.2%
Other operating income:
Trust and investment services income 4,488 4,537 4,799 4,813 4,505 4,079 -1.1% 1.9%
Securities (losses) gains, net (459) 491 216 151 216 324 -193.5% -207.2%
Other income 6,293 5,179 5,017 4,442 3,496 3,065 21.5% 15.5%
Total other operating income 10,322 10,207 10,032 9,406 8,217 7,468 1.1% 6.7%
Other operating expenses 25,405 24,052 22,456 21,631 20,473 19,368 5.6% 5.6%
Income before income tax expense 8,762 12,485 12,749 12,551 10,683 10,524 -29.8% -3.6%
Income tax expense 2,222 3,992 3,994 4,159 3,386 3,667 -44.3% -9.5%
Net income $ 6,540 8,493 8,755 8,392 7,287 6,857 -23.0% -0.9%

AVERAGE BALANCES AND YIELDS

For the purpose of the table below, non-accruing loans are included in the daily average loan amounts outstanding. Daily
balances were used for average balance computations. Investment securities are stated at amortized cost. No tax equivalent
adjustments have been made in calculating yields on obligations of states and political subdivisions.

Distribution of Assets, Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity, Interest Rates and Interest Differential Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands)

2002 2001 2000

ASSETS Average Yield/  Average Yield/  Average Yield/
Earning assets: Balance Interest Rate  Balance Interest Rate  Balance Interest Rate
Loans $428,795 30,907 7.21% 416,370 34,046 8.18% 382,788 33,160 8.66%
Taxable securities 211,626 11,877 5.61 209,630 13,486 6.43 201,641 13,087 6.49
Tax-exempt securities 23,904 1,043 4.36 24,168 1,107 4.58 28,359 1,298 4.58
Federal funds sold 19,375 315 1.63 6,009 271 4.51 2,839 184 6.48
Interest-bearing deposits 2,402 80 3.33 2,635 212 8.05 1,765 249 14.19
Total earning assets 686,102 44,222 6.45% 658,812 49,122 7.46% 617,382 47,978 7.77%
Non-earning assets:
Cash and due from banks 24,064 24,864 24,070
Premises and equipment, net 16,173 14,137 13,040
Other assets 15,477 16,773 17,605
Allowance for loan losses (5,765) (4,832) (4,708)
AFS valuation allowance 9,896 8,888 (367)

Totai $745,947 718,642 667,022

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Interest-bearing liabilities:

Demand deposits $ 41,501 296 0.71% 40,553 432 1.07% 40,939 518 1.27%
Savings and insured money

market deposits 162,737 2,686 1.65 149,301 3,807 255 141,000 4,367 3.10
Time deposits 231,882 9,110 3.93 238,222 12,562 527 227,465 13,010 5.72

Federal Home Loan Bank
advances and securities sold
under agreements to repurchase 111,358 5,002 4.49 97,375 4,901 5.03 77,459 4,160 5.37

Total interest-bearing liabilities 547,478 17,094  3.12% 525,451 21,692 4.13% 486,863 22,055 4.53%
Non-interest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits 109,536 105,585 105,795
Other liabilities 9,412 9,469 6,308
Total liabilities 666,426 640,505 598,966
Shareholders’ equity 79,621 78,137 68,056
Total $745,947 718,642 667,022
Net interest income $27,128 27,430 25,923
Net interest rate spread 3.33% 3.33% 3.24%

Net interest margin 3.95% 4.16% 4.20%
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CHANGES DUE TO VOLUME AND RATE

The following table demonstrates the impact on net interest income of the changes in the volume of earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities and changes in rates earned and paid by the Corporation. For purposes of constructing this table,

average investment securities are at average amortized cost and earning asset averages include non-performing loans.
Therefore, the impact of changing levels of non-performing loans is reflected in the change due to rate, but does not affect

changes due to volume. No tax equivalent adjustments were made.

2002 vs. 2001

2001 vs. 2000

Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease)
Total Due to Due to Total Due to Due to
INTEREST INCOME (in thousands) Change Volume Rate Change Volume Rate
Loans $(3,139) 992 (4,131) 886 2,795 {1,909)
Taxable investment securities (1,609) 127 (1,736} 399 520 (121)
Tax-exempt investment securities (64) (12) (52) (191) (191) 0
Federal funds sold a4 303 (259) 87 156 (69)
Interest-bearing deposits (132) (18) (114) (37) 96 (133)
Total interest incoma $ (4,900) 1,392 (6,292) 1,144 3,376 (2,232)
INTEREST EXPENSE {in thousands)
Interest-bearing demand deposits (136) 10 (146) (86) (5) (81)
Savings and insured money market deposits (1,121) 318 (1,439) (560) 247 (807)
Time deposits (3,442) (326) (3,116) (458) 597 (1,055)
Federal Home Loan Bank
advances and securities sold
under agreements to repurchase 101 660 (559) 741 1,017 (276)
Total interest expense $ (4,598) 662 (5,260) (363) 1,856 (2,219)
Net interest income $ (302) 730 (1,032) 1,507 1,520 (13)
Com-
pounded
SELECTED PER SHARE DATA ON COMMON SHARES % Change Annual
2001 to Growth
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1897 2002 5 years
Net income per share $1.66 $2.10 $2.14 $2.03 $1.77 $1.66 -21.0% 0.0%
Dividends declared 0.92 0.90 0.86 0.76 0.665 0.605 2.2% 8.7%
Tangible book value 19.60 18.55 16.94 14.56 14.59 13.24 5.7% 8.2%
Market price at 12/31 26.875 29.25 19.50 24.50 27.50 21.00 -8.1% 5.1%
Average shares outstanding
(in thousands) 3,928 4,051 4,094 4,132 4,116 4,143 -3.0% -1.1%
SELECTED RATIOS 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Return on average assets 0.88% 1.18% 1.31% 1.31% 1.25%
Return on average tier | equity (1) 9.45% 12.49% 13.92% 14.57% 13.88%
Dividend yield at year end 3.42% 3.15% 4.51% 3.43% 2.47%
Dividend payout 54.27% 42.20% 39.67% 36.90% 37.56%
Total capital to risk adjusted assets 16.12% 16.87% 17.31% 17.30% 17.45%
Tier | capital to risk adjusted assets 14.33% 15.13% 15.49% 16.23% 15.27%
Tier I leverage ratio 9.26% 9.86% 9.91% 9.49% 9.57%
Loans to deposits 79.79% 81.38% 77.16% 74.72% 70.63%
Allowance for loan losses to total loans 1.78% 1.20% 1.19% 1.30% 1.37%
Atlowance for loan losses to non-performing loans 59.1% 90.1% 276% 332% 92.9%
Non-performing loans to total loans 3.01% 1.33% 0.43% 0.39% 1.47%
Net interest rate spread 3.33% 3.33% 3.24% 3.48% 3.62%
Net interest margin 3.95% 4.16% 4.20% 4.30% 4.47%
Efficiency ratio {2) 66.43% 62.06% 60.54% 60.09% 61.97%

(1) Average Tier I Equity is average shareholders’ equity less average goodwill and intangible assets and average accumulated other comprehensive

income/loss.

(2) Efficiency ratio is operating expenses adjusted for amortization of goodwill and intangible assets and stock donations divided by net interest
income plus other operating income adjusted for non-taxable gains on stock donations.




UNAUDITED QUARTERLY DATA

Quarter Ended 2002

{in thousands except per share data) Mar 31 Jun 30 Sep 30 Dec 31
Interest and dividend income $11,256 $11,247 $11,231 $10,487
Interest expense 4,472 4,443 4,288 3,891
Net interest income 6,784 6,804 6,943 6,596
Provision for loan losses 350 350 1,350 1,233
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 6,434 6,454 5,593 5,363
Total other operating income 2,704 3,140 1,838 2,640
Total other operating expenses ) 6,495 6,485 6,525 5,899
Income before income tax expense 2,643 3,109 906 2,104
Income tax expense 793 867 57 505
Net Income $ 1,850 $ 2,242 $ 849 $ 1599
Basic earnings per share $ 0.46 $ 0.56 $ 0.22 $ 042

Quarter Ended 2001

Mar 31 Jun 30 Sep 30 Dec 31
Interest and dividend income $12,202 $12,469 $12,385  $12,056
Interest expense 5,797 5,687 5,330 4,877
Net interest income 6,405 6,782 7,065 7,179
Provision for loan losses 188 188 238 487
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 6,217 6,594 6,827 6,692
Total other operating income 2,457 2,872 3,126 1,752
Total other operating expenses 5,889 6,020 6,030 6,112
Income before income tax expense 2,785 3,446 3,923 2,332
income tax expense 868 1,098 1,351 676
Net Income $ 1,917 $ 2,348 $ 2572 $ 1,656
Basic earnings per share $ 0.47 $ 0.58 $§ 063 $ 0.4

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

During 2002, cash and cash equivalents decreased $329 thousand as compared to an increase of $2.217 million in 2001
and a $3.909 million decrease in 2000. In addition to cash provided by operating activities, other primary sources of cash
in 2002 included proceeds from the sales and maturities of securities and student loans {$159.672 million), an increase in
deposits {$21.078 million) and an increase in Federal Home Loan Bank advances, net of repayments {$3.150 million). In
2001, the primary sources of cash included proceeds from the sales and maturities of securities and student loans ($153.450
million), a net increase in securities sold under agreements to repurchase ($30.050 million), an increase in deposits ($9.299
million) and an increase in Federal Home Loan Bank advances, net of repayments ($4.200 million). The 2001 increase in
securities sold under agreements to repurchase was the result of additional leveraging during 2001.

Cash generated from the above activities was used primarily to fund increases in earning assets. During 2002, the purchases
of securities and the funding of loans, net of repayments, totaled $171.959 million and $13.524 million, respectively. Other
significant uses of cash in 2002 included purchases of premises and equipment ($4.631 million}, payment of cash dividends
($3.592 million) and the purchase of treasury shares ($5.332 million). In 2001, the purchases of securities and funding of
loans, net of repayments, totaled $163.999 million and $33.276 million, respectively. Other significant uses of cash in 2001
included purchases of premises and equipment ($2.727 million), payment of cash dividends ($3.559 million) and the pur-
chase of treasury shares ($2.343 million).

LIQUIDITY AND INTEREST RATE RISK

Liquidity management involves the ability to meet the cash-flow requirements of deposit customers, borrowers, and the
operating, investing, and financing activities of the Corporation. The Corporation uses a variety of resources to meet its
liquidity needs. These include short-term investments, cash flow from lending and investing activities, core deposit growth
and non-core funding sources, such as time deposits of $100,000 or more, securities sold under agreements to repurchase
and other borrowings.
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The Corporation is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (“FHLB”) which allows it to access borrow-
ings which enhance management’s ability to satisfy future liquidity needs. The Corporation maintained a $74.804 million
line of credit at December 31, 2002. This compares to $73.197 million at the end of 2001.

As intermediaries between borrowers and savers, commercial banks incur both interest-rate risk and liquidity risk. The
Corporation’s Asset/Liability Committee (ALCO) has the strategic responsibility for setting the policy guidelines on accept-
able exposure to these areas. These guidelines contain specific measures and limits regarding these risks, which are moni-
tored on a regular basis. The ALCO is made up of the president, two executive vice presidents, asset liability management
officer, senior lending officer, senior marketing officer, chief financial officer, and others representing key functions.

Interest-rate risk is the risk that net interest income will fluctuate as a result of a change in interest rates. It is the assump-
tion of interest-rate risk, along with credit risk, that drives the net interest margin of a financial institution. For that reason,
the ALCO has established tolerance limits based upon a 200-basis-point change in interest rates. At December 31, 2002,

it is estimated that an immediate 200-basis-point decrease in interest rates would negatively impact net-interest income by
16.83% and an immediate 200-basis-point increase would positively impact net-interest income by 2.63%. The risk to
declining interest rates is slightly over the allowable tolerance of 15.0% established by ALCO. Management attributes this
to the overall low level of current interest rates and the corresponding large percentage decrease that results when an imme-
diate 200-basis-point shock is modeled. Additionally, the Corporation’s significant holdings of callable US agency securities,
mortgage-backed securities and mortgage loans, results in less interest income in periods of declining interest rates, as the
cash flow from called bonds and increased prepayments results in higher levels of repricing of assets at lower interest rates.
Although currently outside of the policy guideline, management is comfortable with this exposure, as an immediate decrease
in interest rates across the yield curve is unlikely at this time.

A related component of interest-rate risk is the expectation that the market value of our capital account will fluctuate with
changes in interest rates. This component is a direct corollary to the earnings-impact component: an institution exposed to
earnings erosion is also exposed to shrinkage in market value. At December 31, 2002, it is estimated that an immediate
200-basis-point decrease in interest rates would negatively impact the market value of our capital account by 12.26% and
an immediate 200-basis-point increase in interest rates would negatively impact the market value by 5.89%. Both are with-
in the established tolerance limit of 15.0%.

Management does recognize the need for certain hedging strategies during periods of anticipated higher fluctuartions in
interest rates and the Board-approved Funds Management Policy provides for limited use of certain derivatives in asset
liability management. These strategies were not employed during 2002.

The ALCO is responsible for supervising the preparation and annual revisions of the financial segments of the Annual
Budget, which is built upon the committee’s economic and interest-rate assumptions. It is the responsibility of the ALCO
to modify prudently the Corporation’s asset/liability policies.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 141
requires that all business combinations be accounted for under the purchase method of accounting, thus eliminating the
pooling-of-interests method of accounting.

SFAS No. 142 requires that acquired intangible assets (other than goodwill) be amortized over their useful economic life;
while goodwill and any acquired intangible assets with an indefinite useful economic life are not amortized, but are review-
ed for impairment on an annual basis based upon guidelines specified in the Statement. The Corporation adopted SFAS No.
142 on January 1, 2002, SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill be evaluated for impairment as of January 1, 2002. The
Corporation concluded that the carrying value of its goodwill was not impaired as of January 1, 2002 or during 2002.

At December 31, 2001, the Corporation had goodwill of $1,516,666 related to the acquisition of a bank in 1994. The
amortization expense related to this goodwill amounted to $189,583 for the year ended December 31, 2001. In accordance
with SFAS No. 142, the Corporation is no longer amortizing this goodwill subsequent to December 31, 2001.



In October 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 147, “Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions.” SFAS No. 147 amends
SFAS No. 72, “Accounting for Certain Acquisitions of Banking or Thrift Institutions,” SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” and FASB Interpretation No. 9, “Applying APB Opinions Nos. 16 and 17
When a Savings and Loan Association or a Similar Institution is Acquired in a Business Combination Accounted for by the
Purchase Method.” SFAS No. 147 removes acquisitions of financial institutions, other than transactions between two or
more mutual enterprises, from the scope of SFAS No. 72 and FASB Interpretation No. 9. SFAS No. 147 also amends the

provisions of SFAS No. 144 to apply to long-term customer-relationship intangible assets recognized in the acquisition of

a financial institution. The provisions of SFAS No. 147 were effective October 1, 2002. Accordingly, effective October 1,

2002, the Corporation evaluates its core deposit intangible for impairment in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No.
147. There was no impact on the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements from the adoption of SFAS No. 147.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclo-
sure,” which amends FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” Statement No. 148 provides
alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair-value-based method of accounting for stock-based em-
ployee compensation. In addition, Statement No. 148 amends the disclosure requirements of Statement No. 123 to require
more prominent and more frequent disclosures in financial statements about the effects of stock-based compensation.
SFAS No. 148 will not currently impact the Corporation, as the Corporation does not have any stock-based employee
compensation plans at December 31, 2002.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45 (“FIN No. 45”), “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others; an Interpretation of FASB
Statements No. 5, 57, and 107 and rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34.” FIN No. 435 requires certain new disclosures
and potential liability-recognition for the fair value at issuance of guarantees that fall within its scope. Under FIN No. 435,
the Corporation does not issue any guarantees that would require liability-recognition or disclosure, other than its standby
letters of credit, The Corporation has included the disclosures required by FIN No. 435 at December 31, 2002, in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN No. 46”), “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities.” The objecrive of this interpretation is to provide guidance on how to identify a variable interest entity (“VIE”)
and determine when the assests, liabilities, noncontrolling interests, and results of operations of a VIE need to be included
in a company’s consolidated financial statements. A company that holds variable interests in an entity will need to consoli-
date the entity if the company’s interest in the VIE is such that the company will absorb a majority of the VIE’s expected
losses and/or receive a majority of the entity’s expected residual returns, if they occur. FIN No. 46 also requires additional
disclosures by primary beneficiaries and other significant variable interest holders. The provisions of this interpretation
became effective upon issuance. Management believes that the requirements of FIN No. 46 will not have a material impact
on the Corporation’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or liquidity.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS:

The consolidated financial statements appearing in this annual report have been prepared
by the Corporation in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. The primary responsibility for the integrity of the financial
information included in this report rests with management. The opinion of KPMG LLP,
the Corporation’s independent auditors, on those consolidated financial statements is

included herein.

The Corporation and its subsidiaries maintain a system of internal accounting controls
that is designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, that transac-

ticns are executed in accordance with management’s authorization and are properly

recorded, and that accounting records are adequate for preparation of consolidated

financial statements and other financial information.

The Internal Auditing Department is charged with the responsibility of verifying account-
ing records and reviewing internal controls. The internal auditor reports directly to the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors whose members are all non-employee direc-
tors. The Committee meets with management, the internal auditor and the independent
auditors in conjunction with its review of matters relating to the consolidated financial
statements and the internal audit program. The independent auditors and the internal
auditor also meet on a regular basis with the Audit Committee without the presence of

management.

Jan P. Updegraff
President and Chief Executive Officer

John R. Battersby, Jr.
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS

CHEMUNG FINANCIAL CORPORATION:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Chemung Financial
Corporation and subsidiaries (the Corporation) as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and
the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and comprehensive
income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December
31, 2002. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Corpora-
tion’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated

financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits pro-

vide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of Chemung Financial Corporation and sub-
sidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2002, in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

KPMme LEP

Albany, New York
February 7, 2003
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
CHEMUNG FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

December 31

32

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks

Interest-bearing deposits with other financial institutions
Total cash and cash equivalents

Securities available for sale, at estimated fair value
Securities held to maturity, estimated fair value of
$8,185,055 at December 31, 2002, and $7,318,438
at December 31, 2001
Loans, net of deferred origination fees and costs,
and unearned income
Allowance for loan losses
Loans, net
Premises and equipment, net
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization
Other intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization
Other assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits:
Non-interest-bearing
Interest-bearing
Total deposits
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Accrued interest payable
Dividends payable
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (note 14)

Shareholders’ equity:

Common stock, $.01 par value per share, 10,000,000
shares authorized; 4,300,134 shares issued at
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Capital surplus

Retained earnings

Treasury stock, at cost (522,609 shares at December 31, 2002;

335,906 shares at December 31, 2001)
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2002

2001

28,836,759
1,215,328

29,023,378
1,357,999

30,052,087

30,381,377

257,153,717

7,835,498

432,294,450
(7,674,377)

239,136,669

7,116,489

423,754,548
(3,077,091)

424,620,073

418,677,457

17,496,416
1,516,666
2,552,034
9,944,364

14,750,014
1,516,666
2,949,754

10,543,328

751,170,855

725,071,754

109,602,512 110,805,658
432,162,955 409,881,344
541,765,467 520,687,002
78,661,100 79,457,282
40,750,000 37,600,000
1,482,058 2,106,972
868,831 911,772
8,216,222 5,147,149
671,743,678 645,910,177
43,001 43,001
22,355,407 22,215,098
61,247,551 58,257,076
(11,826,290) (6,515,591)
7,607,508 5,161,993
79,427,177 79,161,577
751,170,855 725,071,754




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
CHEMUNG FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2002 2001 2000
Interest and dividend income:
Loans $ 30,906,837 34,046,041 33,159,628
Securities 12,920,581 14,593,404 14,385,016
Federal funds sold 314,596 270,611 184,377
Interest-bearing deposits 80,202 211,613 248,942
Total interest and dividend income 44222216 49,121,669 47,977,963
Interest expense:
Deposits 12,091,912 16,791,392 17,894,382
Borrowed funds 1,195,827 1,333,080 1,400,290
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 3,806,459 3,567,576 2,760,186
Total interest expense 17,094,198 21,692,048 22,054,858
Net interest income 27,128,018 27,429,621 25,923,105
Provision for loan losses 3,283,333 1,100,000 750,000
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 23,844,685 26,329,621 25,173,105
Other operating income:
Trust & investment services income 4,488,251 4,536,702 4,798,724
Service charges on deposit accounts 2,813,193 2,614,820 2,489,887
Net (loss) gain on securities transactions (458,565) 490,705 216,053
Credit card merchant earnings 1,332,778 1,280,013 992,578
Other 2,146,458 1,284,979 1,534,970
Total other operating income 10,322,115 10,207,219 10,032,212
Other operating expenses:
Salaries and wages 9,528,540 9,180,638 8,582,216
Pension and other employee benefits 2,771,721 2,663,166 2,167,209
Net occupancy expenses 2,051,288 1,946,855 1,878,329
Furniture and equipment expenses 2,008,445 1,751,991 1,893,852
Other 9,045,380 8,509,310 7,934,537
Total other operating expenses 25,405,374 24,051,960 22,456,143
Income before income tax expense 8,761,426 12,484,880 12,749,174
Income tax expense 2,221,533 3,991,628 3,994,075
Net income $ 6,539,893 8,493,252 8,755,099
Weighted average shares outstanding 3,928,332 4,051,022 4,094,489
Basic earnings per share $1.66 $2.10 $2.14
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CONSCLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREKENSIVE INCOME
CHEMUNG FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Accumulated

Other
Compre-
Common Capital Retained Treasury hensive
Stock Surplus Earnings Stock Income (Loss) Total
Balances at December 31, 1999 $ 43,001 21,941,629 48,065,946 (4,435,629} ( 303,064) 65,311,883
Comprehensive Income:
Net income — — 8,755,099 — — 8,755,099
Other comprehensive income — — — — 3,947,831 3,947,831
Total comprehensive income 12,702,930
Restricted stock units for directors’
deferred compensation plan — 159,332 — — — 159,332
Cash dividends declared
($.86 per share) — —  (3,473,424) — — (3,473,424)
Distribution of restricted stock
units for directors’ deferred
compensation plan (89,434) 97,341 7,907
Purchase of 19,068 shares of
treasury stock — — — (397,113) — (397,113)
Balances at December 31, 2000 $ 43,001 22,011,527 53,347,621 (4,735,401} 3,644,767 74,311,515
Comprehensive Income:
Net income — — 8,493,252 — — 8,493,252
Other comprehensive income — — — — 1,517,226 1,517,226
Total comprehensive income 10,010,478
Restricted stock units for directors’
deferred compensation plan — 137,878 — — — 137,878
Cash dividends declared
{$.90 per share) — —  (3,583,797) — —  (3,583,797)
Distribution of restricted stock
units for directors’ deferred
compensation plan (14,927) 14,342 (585)
Sale of 30,130 shares of
treasury stock 80,620 548,851 629,471
Purchase of 97,275 shares of
treasury stock — — —  (2,343,383) — (2,343,383)
Balances at December 31, 2001 $ 43,001 22,215,098 58,257,076 (6,515,591) 5,161,993 79,161,577
Comprehensive Income:
Net income — — 6,539,893 — —_ 6,539,893
Other comprehensive income — — — — 2,445,515 2,445,515
Total comprehensive income 8,985,408
Restricted stock units for directors’
deferred compensation plan — 151,486 — — — 151,486
Cash dividends declared
($.92 per share) — —  (3,549,418) — —  (3,549,418)
Distribution of employee stock bonus 2,454 5,961 8,415
Distribution of restricted stock
units for directors’ deferred
compensation plan (13,631) 15,970 2,339
Purchase of 187,812 shares of
treasury stock — — — (5,332,630) —  (5,332,630)
Balances at December 31, 2002 $ 43,001 22,355,407 61,247,551 (11,826,290) 7,607,508 79,427,177

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
CHEMUNG FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Amortization of goodwill and intangible assets

Provision for deferred tax (benefit) expense

Provision for loan losses

Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts
on securities, net

Net loss (gain) on securities transactions

Decrease (increase) in other assets

(Decrease) increase in accrued interest payable

Expense related to restricted stock units for directors’
deferred compensation plan

Increase (decrease) in other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale

Proceeds from maturities of and principal collected
on securities available for sale

Proceeds from maturities of and principal collected
on securities held to maturity

Purchases of securities available for sale

Purchases of securities held to maturity

Purchases of premises and equipment

Net increase in loans

Proceeds from sales of student loans
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Net increase in demand deposits, NOW accounts,
savings accounts, and insured money market accounts

Net (decrease) increase in time deposits and individual
retirement accounts

Net (decrease) increase in securities sold under agreements
to repurchase

Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Repayments of Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Purchase of treasury stock

Sale of treasury stock

Cash dividends paid

Net cash provided by financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest

Income taxes

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activity:
Transfer of loans to other real estate owned

Adjustment of securities available for sale to fair value, net of tax

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2002 2001 2000

$ 6,539,893 8,493,252 8,755,099
397,719 587,303 587,302
(1,464,115) (238,355) 364,908
3,283,333 1,100,000 750,000
1,884,604 1,574,857 1,508,703
787,395 (119,310) 143,105
458,565 (490,705) (216,053)
1,182,229 (238,380) (658,738)
(624,914) (19,751) 516,881
151,486 137,878 159,332
3,008,387 (294,346) 313,269
15,604,582 10,492,443 12,223,808
15,137,874 23,295,936 25,222,726
135,875,581 123,067,506 23,679,474
4,944,237 3,745,029 7,140,429
(166,295,395)  (159,703,735)  (37,579,602)
(5,663,241) (4,295,649) (5,099,603)
(4,631,006) (2,727,230) (2,984,677)
(13,523,536) (33,275,746)  (38,104,619)
3,714,321 3,341,687 2,651,931
(30,441,165) (46,552,202)  (25,073,941)
30,562,963 6,266,132 6,108,890
(9,484,498) 3,033,113 23,505,178
(796,182) 30,050,456 (539,665)
15,750,000 12,600,000 13,400,000
(12,600,000) (8,400,000)  (29,700,000)
(5,332,630) (2,343,383) (397,113)
— 629,471 —
(3,592,360) (3,558,754) (3,435,952
14,507,293 38,277,035 8,941,338
(329,290) 2,217,276 (3,908,795)
30,381,377 28,164,101 32,072,896
$ 30,052,087 30,381,377 28,164,101
$ 17,719,112 21,711,799 21,537,977
$ 444,052 4,138,230 3,608,962
$ 583,265 20,343 137,261
$ 2,445,515 1,517,226 3,947,831
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CHEMUNG FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2001 AND 2000

2002,

DECEMBER 31,



1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ORGANIZATION

Chemung Financial Corporation (the Corporation), through its wholly owned subsidiaries, Chemung Canal Trust Company
(the Bank) and CFS Group, Inc., provides a wide range of banking, financing, fiduciary and other financial services to its
local market area. The Corporation is subject to the regulations of certain federal and state agencies and undergoes period-
ic examinations by those regulatory agencies.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles general-
ly accepted in the United States of America and include the accounts of the Corporation and its subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of rev-
enues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

SECURITIES

Management determines the appropriate classification of securities at the time of purchase. If management has the intent
and the Corporation has the ability at the time of purchase to hold securities until maturity, they are classified as held to
maturity and carried at amortized cost. Securities to be held for indefinite periods of time or not intended to be held to
maturity are classified as available for sale and carried at fair value. Unrealized holding gains and losses on securities clas-
sified as available for sale are excluded from earnings and are reported as accumulated other comprehensive income {loss)
in shareholders’ equity, net of the related tax effects, until realized. Realized gains and losses are determined using the
specific identification method.

Non-marketable equity securities are classified with securities available for sale. Non-marketable equity securities owned
by the Corporation at December 31, 2002 and 2001 include Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (FHLB) stock and Federal
Reserve Bank (FRB) stock, which are carried at cost since there is no readily available market price for these securities.

A decline in the fair value of any available for sale or held to maturity security below amortized cost that is deemed other
than temporary is charged to earnings resulting in the establishment of a new cost basis for the security. Securities are
placed in non-accrual status when management believes there are significant doubts regarding the ultimate collectibility
of interest and/or principal. Premiums and discounts are amortized or accreted over the life of the related security as an
adjustment of yield using the interest method. Dividend and interest income is recognized when earned.

LOANS

Loans are stated at the amount of unpaid principal balance less unearned discounts and net deferred origination fees and
costs. The Corporation has the ability and intent to hold its loans for the foreseeable future, except for student loans, which
are sold to a third party from time to time upon reaching repayment status.

Interest on loans is accrued and credited to operations on the interest method. The accrua! of interest is generally discontin-
ued and previously accrued interest is reversed when commercial loans become 90 days delinquent, and when consumer,
mortgage and home equity loans, which are not guaranteed by government agencies, become 120 days delinquent. Loans
may also be placed on non-accrual status if management believes such classification is warranted for other purposes. Loans
are returned to accrual status when they become current as to principal and interest or when, in the opinion of manage-
ment, the loans are expected to be fully collectible as to principal and interest. Loan origination fees and certain direct loan
origination costs are deferred and amortized over the life of the loan as an adjustment to yield, using the interest method.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The allowance for loan losses is increased through a provision for loan losses charged to operations. Loans are charged
against the allowance for loan losses when management believes that the collectibility of all or a portion of the principal

is unlikely. The allowance is an amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb probable losses on existing
loans. Management’s evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is performed on a periodic basis and
takes into consideration such factors as the historical loan loss experience, review of specific problem loans (including eval-
uations of the underlying collateral), changes in the composition and volume of the loan portfolio, overall portfolio quality,
and current economic conditions that may affect the borrowers’ ability to pay. Management believes that the allowance for
loan losses is adequate. While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, future additions to the
allowance may be necessary based on changes in economic conditions, particularly in New York State. In addition, various
regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the Corporation’s allowance for
loan losses. Such agencies may require the Corporation to recognize additions to the allowance based on their judgments
about information available to them at the time of their examination.

Management, considering current information and events regarding the borrower’s ability to repay their obligations, con-
siders a loan to be impaired when it is probable that the Corporation will be unable to collect all amounts due according to
the contractual terms of the loan agreement. When a loan is considered to be impaired, the amount of the impairment is
measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or, as a
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practical expedient, at the loan’s observable market price or the fair value of collateral, less the estimated costs to sell, if
the loan is collateral dependent. Residential mortgage loans and consumer loans are evaluated collectively since they are
homogeneous and generally carry smaller balances. All loans restructured in a troubled debt restructuring are also consid-
ered impaired loans. In general, interest income on impaired loans is recorded on a cash basis when collection in full is
reasonably expected. If full collection is uncertain, cash receipts are applied first to principal, then to interest income.

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Land is carried at cost, while buildings, equipment and furniture are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amor-
tization. Depreciation is charged to current operations under accelerated and straight-line methods over the estimated use-
ful lives of the assets, which range from 15 to 50 years for buildings and from 3 to 10 years for equipment and furniture.
Amortization of leasehold improvements and leased equipment is recognized on the straight-line method over the shorter
of the lease term or the estimated life of the asset.

OTHER REAL ESTATE

Rea! estate acquired through foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure is recorded at the lower of the carrying value of the
loan or estimated fair value of the property less estimated costs to dispose at the time of acquisition. Write downs from the
carrying value of the loan to estimated fair value which are required at the time of foreclosure are charged to the aliowance
for loan losses. Subsequent to acquisition, other real estate is carried at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less
estimated costs to dispose. Subsequent adjustments to the carrying values of such properties resulting from declines in fair
value are charged to operations in the period in which the declines occur. Other real estate owned at December 31, 2002,
amounted to $405,687 and at December 31, 2001, amounted to $82,035.

INCOME TAXES

The Corporation files a consolidated tax return on the accrual method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and for unused tax carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which temporary differences are
expected to be recovared or settled, or the tax carryforwards are expected to be utilized. The effect on deferred tax assets
and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

TRUST AND INVESTMENT SERVICES INCOME

Assets held in a fiduciary or agency capacity for customers are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets, since such assets are not assets of the Corporation. Trust and Investment Services income is recognized on the
accrual method based on contractual rates applied to the balances of individual trust accounts. The market value of trust
assets under administration totaled $1.215 billion at December 31, 2002, and $1.375 billion at December 31, 2001.

PENSION PLAN

Pension costs, based on actuarial computations of current and future benefits for employees, are charged to current
operating results. The Corporation’s funding policy is to contribute amounts to the plan sufficient to meet minimum regula-
tory funding requirements, plus such additional amounts as the Corporation may determine to be appropriate from time

to time.

POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS
The Corporation provides health care and life insurance benefits for retired employees. The estimated costs of providing
benefits are accrued over the years the employees render services necessary to earn those benefits.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Prior to the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS”) No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets,” on January 1, 2002 (see "RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS"), goodwill, which represents the excess
of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired, was being amortized over 15 years on a straight-line basis.
Core deposit intangible ("CDI"), resulting from the Corporation’s purchase of deposits from the Resolution Trust Company
in 1994, is being ameortized over the expected useful life of 15 years on a straight-line basis. See “RECENT ACCOUNTING
PRONOUNCEMENTS” for further information regarding the accounting for goodwill and CDI subsequent to December 31,
2001.

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is computed on the basis of the weighted average number of common shares outstanding,
retroactively adjusted for stock splits and dividends. Issuable shares (such as those related to directors’ restricted stock
units) are considered outstanding and are included in the computation of basic earnings per share.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents include cash and amounts due from banks, interest-bearing deposits with other financial institu-
tions, federal funds sold, and U.S. Treasury securities with original terms to maturity of 90 days or less.

SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE
The Corporation enters into sales of securities under agreements to repurchase. The agreements are treated as financings,
and the obligations to repurchase securities sold are reflected as liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. The amount




of the securities underlying the agreements continue to be carried in the Corporation’s securities portfolio. The Corporation
has agreed to repurchase securities identical to those sold. The securities underlying the agreements are under the
Corporation’s control.

OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Corporation is a party to certain other financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk such as commitments under
standby letters of credit, unused portions of lines of credit and commitments to fund new loans. The Corporation’s policy
is to record such instruments when funded.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income at the Corporation represents net income plus other comprehensive income or loss, which consists
of the net change in unrealized holding gains or losses on securities available for sale, net of the related tax effect. Accumu-
fated other comprehensive income or loss represents the net unrealized holding gains or losses on securities available for
sale as of the consolidated balance sheet dates, net of the related tax effect.

Comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000 was $8,985,408, $10,010,478, and
$12,702,930, respectively. The following summarizes the components of other comprehensive income (loss):

Unrealized net holding gains during the year-ended December 31, 2002,

net of tax (pre-tax amount of $3,568,962) $2,167,074
Reclassification adjustment for net losses realized in net income during the year-ended

December 31, 2002, net of tax (pre-tax amount of ($458,565)) 278,441
Other comprehensive income for the year-ended December 31, 2002 $ 2,445,515

Unrealized net holding gains during the year-ended December 31, 2001,

net of tax (pre-tax amount of $2,969,923) $ 1,813,563
Reclassification adjustment for net gains realized in net income during the year-ended

December 31, 2001, net of tax (pre-tax amount of $490,705) ( 296,337)
Other comprehensive income for the year-ended December 31, 2001 $1,517,226

Unrealized net holding gains during the year-ended December 31, 2000,

net of tax (pre-tax amount of $6,789,197) $ 4,077,592
Reclassification adjustment for net gains realized in net income during the year-ended

December 31, 2000, net of tax (pre-tax amount of $216,053) {129,761)
Other comprehensive income for the year-ended December 31, 2000 $ 3,947,831

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Corporation’s operations are solely in the financial services industry and primarily include the provision of traditional
banking services. The Corporation operates primarily in the geographical regions of Chemung, Steuben, Schuyler, and
Tioga counties, including the northern tier of Pennsylvania. The Corporation has identified separate operating segments;
however, these segments did not meet the quantitative thresholds for separate disclosure.

RECLASSIFICATION
Amounts in the prior years’ consolidated financial statements are reclassified whenever necessary to conform with the cur-
rent year's presentation.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB”) issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and
SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 141 requires that all business combinations be accounted
for under the purchase method of accounting, thus eliminating the pooling-of-interests method of accounting.

SFAS No. 142 requires that acquired intangible assets (other than goodwill) be amortized over their useful economic life;
while goodwill and any acquired intangible assets with an indefinite useful economic life are not amortized, but are review-
ed for impairment on an annual basis based upon guidelines specified in the Statement. The Corporation adopted SFAS
No. 142 on January 1, 2002. SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill be evaluated for impairment as of January 1, 2002.

The Corporation concluded that the carrying value of its goodwill was not impaired as of January 1, 2002, or during 2002.

At December 31, 2001, the Corporation had goodwill of $1,516,666 related to the acquisition of a bank in 1994. The amorti-

zation expense related to this goodwill amounted to $189,584 for the year ended December 31, 2001. In accordance with
SFAS No. 142, the Corporation is no longer amortizing this goodwill subsequent to December 31, 2001.
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In October 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 147, "Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions.” SFAS No. 147 amends SFAS
No. 72, "Accounting for Certain Acquisitions of Banking or Thrift Institutions,” SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impair-
ment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” and FASB Interpretation No. 9, "Applying APB Opinions Nos. 16 and 17 When a
Savings and Loan Association or a Similar Institution is Acquired in a Business Combination Accounted for by the Purchase
Method.” SFAS No. 147 removes acquisitions of financial institutions, other than transactions between two or more mutual
enterprises, from the scope of SFAS No. 72 and FASB Interpretation No. 9. SFAS No. 147 also amends the provisions of
SFAS No. 144 to apply to long-term customer-relationship intangible assets recognized in the acquisition of a financial insti-
tution. The provisions of SFAS No. 147 were effective October 1, 2002. Accordingly, effective October 1, 2002, the Corpora-
tion evaluates its core deposit intangible for impairment in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 147. There was no
impact on the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements from the adoption of SFAS No. 147.

2. RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANK ACCOUNTS

The Corporation is required to maintain certain reserves of vault cash and/or deposits with the Federal Reserve Bank of
New York. The amount of this reserve requirement was $750,000 at December 31, 2002.

3. SECURITIES
Amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities available for sale at December 31, 2002 and 2001, are as follows:

2002 2001

Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Obligations of U.S. Government agencies $ 70,424,704 71,839,916 % 98,866,251 100,129,417
Mortgage-backed securities 136,559,684 140,008,976 92,538,928 92,992,484
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 16,989,907 17,933,891 17,496,893 17,728,855
Corporate bonds and notes 13,712,085 14,785,105 14,704,510 14,830,561
Corporate stocks 6,938,504 12,585,830 6,982,327 13,455,352

Total $ 244,624,884 257,153,717  $230,588,909 239,136,669

Included in corporate stocks at both December 31, 2002 and 2001, is the Corporation’s required investment in the stock of
the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (FHLB) carried at its cost basis of $5,662,500 and $5,710,000, respectively. This
investment allowed the Corporation to maintain a $74,803,900 line of credit with the FHLB at December 31, 2002, and
$73,197,400 at December 31, 2001. Other required equities in the Corporation’s portfolio include 10,781 shares of Federal
Reserve Bank stock carried at $539,050 at December 31, 2002, and 10,700 shares carried at $535,000 at December 31, 2001.

Gross unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale at December 31, 2002 and 2001, were as follows:

2002 2001
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Gains Losses Gains Losses

Obligations of U.S. Government agencies 3 1,420,351 5,140 $1,336,634 73,468
Mortgage-backed securities 3,450,024 732 631,300 177,744
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 944,296 312 336,204 104,242
Corporate bonds and notes 1,350,209 277,189 310,123 184,072
Corporate stocks 5,655,658 8,332 6,481,357 8,332
Total $ 12,820,538 291,705 $9,095,618 547,858

Gross realized gains on sales of securities available for sale were $547,206, $528,634, and $1,388,358 for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Gross realized losses on sales of securities available for sale were $37,929
and $1,172,305 for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. There were no realized losses on sales of
securities available for sale for the year ended December 31, 2002.

The Corporation’s investment portfolio includes an investment in a $2.5 million par value corporate bond that was down-
graded to below investment grade status by nationally recognized rating agencies during the third quarter of 2002. Man-
agement determined in the third quarter of 2002 that the resulting decline in the estimated fair value of this bond was
other-than-temporary, and, accordingly, wrote the bond down to its estimated fair value of $1.288 million at September 25,
2002, resulting in a $1.006 million pre-tax charge to earnings. The estimated fair value of the bond at December 31, 2002
was $2.008 million. Subsequent to the writedown, the Corporation placed the bond on non-accrual status.

Securities held to maturity of $7,835,498 and $7,116,489 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, represent non-mar-
ketable obligations of political subdivisions, usually local municipalities. Estimated fair value at December 31, 2002 and

2001 was $8,185,055 and $7,318,438, respectively. There were no sales of sécurities held to maturity in 2002, 2001 or 2000.
by
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The contractual maturity of these securities at amortized cost is as follows at December 31, 2002: $3,732,806 (fair value of
$3,742,114) within one year, $2,096,212 (fair value of $2,289,669) after one year but within five years, $1,576,480 {fair value
of $1,666,047) after five years but within ten years and $430,000 (fair value of $497,225) greater than ten years.

Interest and dividend income on securities for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Taxable:
U.S. Treasury securities $ 138,646 297,520 767,261
Obligations of U.S. Government agencies 4,816,713 5,794,805 5,674,224
Mortgage-backed securities 5,675,333 5,933,499 5,190,539
Corporate bonds and notes 932,910 907,945 816,503
Corporate stocks 413,482 552,212 638,503
Exempt from Federal taxation:
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 1,043,497 1,107,423 1,297,986
Total $ 12,920,581 14,593,404 14,385,016

The amortized cost and estimated fair value by years to contractual maturity (mortgage-backed securities are shown as
maturing based on the estimated average life at the projected prepayment speed) as of December 31, 2002, for debt securi-
ties available for sale are as follows:

Maturing
After One,
Within One Year But Within Five Years
Amortized Cost Fair Value Amortized Cost Fair Value
Obligations of U.S. Government agencies $ 35,747,487 36,068,615 $ 23,006,427 24,043,150
Mortgage-backed securities 33,613,373 34,480,454 76,778,470 79,212,371
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 2,101,635 2,125,197 7,139,422 7,641,764
Corporate bonds and notes 2,499,744 2,527,625 2,568,412 2,794,775
Total $ 73,962,139 75,201,891 $109,482,731 113,692,060
Maturing
After Five, But
Within Ten Years After Ten Years
Amortized Cost  Fair Value Amortized Cost Fair Value
Obligations of U.S. Government agencies $ 10,000,000 10,062,500 $ 1,670,790 1,665,650
Mortgage-backed securities 16,616,824 16,720,902 9,651,017 9,695,249
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 7,467,941 7,875,718 281,009 291,212
Corporate bonds and notes 1,287,500 2,008,250 7,366,429 7,454,455
Total $ 35,372,265 36,667,370 $18,869,245 19,006,566

Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities above because issuers may have the right to call or prepay obliga-
tions with or without call or prepayment penalties.

The fair value of securities pledged to secure public funds on deposit or for other purposes as required by law was
$162,805,967 at December 31, 2002, and $184,468,089 at December 31, 2001. This includes mortgage-backed securities total-
ing $42,233,474 and $32,337,636 (fair value of $43,258,600 and $32,376,437), and obligations of U.S. Government agencies
totaling $40,115,020 and $61,763,587 (fair value of $41,109,054 and $62,332,729) pledged to secure securities sold under
agreements to repurchase at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

There are no securities of a single issuer (other than securities of U.S. Government agencies) that exceed 10% of sharehold-
ers’ equity at December 31, 2002 or 2001.

The Corporation has equity investments in Southern Tier Business Development, LLC and Cephas Capital Partners, L.P.
These small business investment companies were established for the purpose of providing financing to small businesses
in market areas served by the Corporation, including minority-owned small businesses and those that are anticipated to
create jobs for the low to moderate income levels in the targeted areas. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, these invest-
ments totaled $3,147,569 and $2,967,300, respectively, are included in other assets, and are accounted for under the equity
method of accounting.

41




42

4, LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The composition of the loan portfolio is summarized as follows:

DECEMBER 31, 2002 2001
Residential mortgages $ 101,035,998 101,168,582
Commercial mortgages 44,966,502 48,510,572
Commercial, financial and agricultural 152,518,010 139,821,707
Consumer loans 134,204,609 134,626,731
Net deferred origination fees and costs, and unearned income (430,669) (373,044)

$ 432,294,450 423,754,548

Included in consumer loans are student loans totaling $4,552,318 at December 31, 2002 and $4,191,072 at December 31,
2001, which are considered held for sale once these loans enter repayment status.

Residential mortgages totaling $84,704,223 at December 31, 2002, and $83,078,601 at December 31, 2001, were pledged
under a blanket collateral agreement for the Corporation’s line of credit with the FHLB.

The Corporation’s market area encompasses the New York State counties of Chemung, Steuben, Schuyler and Tioga, as
well as the northern tier of Pennsylvania. Substantially all of the Corporation’s outstanding loans are with borrowers living
or doing business within 25 miles of the Corporation’s branches in these counties. The Corporation’s concentrations of
credit risk by loan type are reflected in the preceding table. The concentrations of credit risk with standby letters of credit,
committed lines of credit and commitments to originate new loans, generally follow the loan classifications in the table
above. Other than general economic risks, management is not aware of any material concentrations of credit risk to any
industry or individual borrower.

The following table summarizes the Corporation’s non-performing loans at December 31, 2002 and 2001:

2002 2001
Non-accrual loans $ 9,345,534 1,490,081
Troubled debt restructurings 3,381,991 77,516
Loans 90 days or more past due and still accruing interest 266,503 4,065,288
Total non-performing loans $ 12,994,028 5,632,885

The total amount of interest income that would have been recorded in 2002 if the above non-accrual and troubled debt re-
structured loans had been current in accordance with their original terms and had been outstanding throughout the period
or since origination, if held for part of the period, was $881,766. During 2002, $862,041 of interest income was recognized
on those loans. The comparable amounts for 2001 and 2000 for non-accrual and troubled debt restructured loans at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, were not significant. The Corporation is not committed to advance additional funds to bor-
rowers with non-performing loans.

Transactions in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Balances at January 1 $ 5,077,091 4,707,868 4,665,093
Provision charged to operations 3,283,333 1,100,000 750,000
Loans charged-off (879,794) (949,692) (853,409)
Recoveries 193,747 218,915 146,184
Balances at December 31 $ 7,674,377 5,077,091 4,707,868

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the recorded investment in loans that are considered to be impaired totaled $12,397,648
and $746,734, respectively. Included in the 2002 amount are impaired loans of $5,077,705 for which an impairment allow-
ance has been recognized. The related impairment allowance was $3,142,827. The 2001 amount includes $428,779 of
impaired loans with a related impairment allowance of $278,344. The average recorded investment in impaired loans dur-
ing 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $6,126,882, $849,892 and $744,081, respectively. During 2002, interest income recognized on
impaired loans during the period the loans were impaired totaled $331,084, of which $308,232 was recognized on a cash-
basis. The interest income recognized on impaired loans in 2001 and 2000 was not significant.



5. PREMISES & EQUIPMEENT
Premises and equipment at December 31, 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

2002 2001

Land $ 3,031,408 2,681,408
Buildings 17,772,109 16,433,926
Equipment and furniture 20,212,147 17,327,476
Leasehold improvements 434,491 432,876
41,450,155 36,875,686

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 23,953,739 22,125,672
$ 17,496,416 14,750,014

6. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The following table reconciles reported net income to adjusted net income, as if the provisions of SFAS No. 142 regarding
the non-amortization of goodwill were in effect during the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000:

2001 2000
Reported net income $ 8,493,252 8,755,099
Add: Goodwill amortization (not tax deductible) 189,584 189,583
Net income, as adjusted $ 8,682,836 8,944,682
Reported basic earnings per share $2.10 $2.14
Add: Goodwill amortization .04 .04
Basic earnings per share, as adjusted $2.14 $2.18

At December 31, 2002, the Corporation had a core deposit intangible asset {"CDI") with a carrying amount of $2,652,034
(original amount of $5,965,793, net of accumulated amortization of $3,413,759) related to the acquisition of deposits from
the Resolution Trust Company in 1994. The CDI had a carrying amount of $2,949,754 at December 31, 2001. The amortiza-
tion expense related to this CDI totaled $397,719 for each of the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000. As of
December 31, 2002, the remaining amortization period for this CDI was approximately 6.4 years. The estimated amortization
expense is $397,719 for each of the years ended December 31, 2003 through 2007, with $563,439 in amortization expense in
years subsequent to 2007.

7. DEPOSITS
A summary of deposits at December 31, 2002 and 2001 is as follows:

2002 2001
Non-interest-bearing demand deposits $ 109,602,512 110,805,658
interest-bearing demand deposits 41,617,222 39,331,058
Insured money market accounts 64,457,270 44,598,178
Savings deposits 104,651,237 95,030,384
Time deposits 221,437,226 230,921,724

$ 541,765,467 520,687,002

Time deposits include certificates of deposit in denominations of $100,000 or more aggregating $44,376,747 and
$57,522,589 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Interest expense on such certificates was $1,675,167, $3,207,552
and $4,163,041 for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Scheduled maturities of time deposits at December 31, 2002, are summarized as follows:

2003 $ 136,495,253
2004 36,503,927
2005 16,627,350
2006 7,242,720
2007 24,544,656
2008 and thereafter 23,320

$ 221,437,226
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8. SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE
A summary of securities sold under agreements to repurchase as of and for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000 is as follows:

2002 2001 2000

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase:
Balance at December 31 $78,661,100 79,457,282 49,406,826
Maximum month-end balance 90,269,184 79,658,810 51,003,367
Average balance during year 85,251,981 68,653,225 50,110,845
Weighted-average rate at December 31 4.46% 4.68% 5.75%
Average rate paid during year 4.46% 5.20% 5.51%

The agreements have remaining contractual maturities of 2 days to 8.2 years at December 31, 2002, with a weighted-aver-
age contractual maturity of 3.2 years. Certain of the agreements have call features. At December 31, 2002, the weighted-
average period to the earlier of the next call date or the contractual maturity date was approximately four months.

Information concerning outstanding securities repurchase agreements as of December 31, 2002 is summarized as follows:

Accrued Fair Value of

Repurchase Interest Weighted- Collateral

Remaining Term to Final Maturity (1) Liability Payable  Average Rate  Securities (2)
Within 90 days $ 16,161,100 $ 31,856 2.02% $ 26,879,293
After 90 days but with one year 18,000,000 74,228 4.55% 15,621,762
After one year but within five years 14,500,000 156,013 5.92% 14,869,731
After five years but within ten years 30,000,000 117,050 5.09% 25,671,771
Total $ 78,661,100 $ 379,147 4.46% $ 83,042,557

(1) The weighted-average remaining term to final maturity was approximately 3.2 years at December 31, 2002. At December 31, 2002,
$54.5 million of the securities repurchase agreements contained call provisions. The weighted-average rate at December 31, 2002 on the
callable securities repurchase agreements was 5.51%, with a weighted-average remaining period of approximately 6 months to the call
date. At December 31, 2002, $24.2 million of the securities repurchase agreements did not contain call provisions. The weighted-aver-
age rate at December 31, 2002 on the non-callable securities repurchase agreements was 2.10%, with a weighted-average term to matu-
rity of approximately 2 months.

(2) Represents the fair value of the securities subject to the repurchase agreements, including accrued interest receivable of approximately
$982 thousand at December 31, 2002.

9. FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES
The following is a summary of Federal Home Loan Bank advances at December 31, 2002:

Weighted-

Average
Amount Rate Maturity Call Date
$ 15,750,000 1.35% January 2, 2003 -
5,000,000 5.41% December 29, 2005 March 29, 2003
10,000,000 3.72% September 13, 2007 -
10,000,000 4.41% October 20, 2008 January 20, 2003

$ 40,750,000 3.18%

Residential mortgages totaling $84,704,223 at December 31, 2002, were pledged under a blanket collateral agreement for
the Corporation’s advances with the FHLB.

10. INCOME TAXES
For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, income tax expense attributable to income from operations con-
sisted of the following:

2002 2001 2000

Current:
State $ 201,217 414,260 195,635
Federal 3,484,431 3,815,723 3,433,632
3,685,648 4,229,983 3,629,167
Deferred (benefit) expense (1,464,115) (238,355) 364,908
$ 2,221,533 3,991,628 3,994,075




Income tax expense differed from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. Federal statutory income tax rate to income

before income tax expense as follows:

: 2002 2001 2000

Tax computed at statutory rate $ 2,978,885 4,244,859 4,334,719
Tax-exempt interest (539,655) (569,665) (641,915)
Dividend exclusion (31,073) (43,718) (67,865)
State taxes, net of Federal impact (53,265) 243,268 207,909
Nondeductible interest expense 58,637 70,417 87,796
Other items, net (191,896) 46,467 63,431
Actual income tax expense $ 2,221,533 3,991,628 3,994,075

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax lia-

bilities at December 31, 2002 and 2001, are presented below:

2002 2001
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS:
Allowance for loan losses-book $ 2,989,169 1,977,527
Accrual for post-retirement benefits other than pensions 866,427 773,433
Deferred loan fees 166,994 144,101
Deferred compensation and directors’ fees 688,537 751,490
Corporate bond write-down 391,748 ~
Other 144,119 131,837
Total gross deferred tax assets 5,246,994 3,778,388
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES:
Depreciation 180,842 120,735
Prepaid pension 189,206 327,591
Net unrealized gains on securities available for sale 4,921,325 3,385,768
Securities discount accretion 291,543 208,580
Other 37,243 37,437
Total gross deferred tax liabilities 5,620,159 4,080,111
Net deferred tax liability $ (373,165) (301,723)

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income or the existence of sufficient
taxable income within the loss carryback period. A valuation allowance is recognized when it is more likely than not that
some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. In assessing the need for a valuation allowance, management
considers the scheduled reversal of the deferred tax liabilities, the level of historical taxable income and projected future
taxable income over the periods in which the temporary differences comprising the deferred tax assets will be deductible.

Based on its assessment, management determined that no valuation allowance is necessary.

11. PENSION PLAN AND OTHER BENEFIT PLANS

The Corporation has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all employees. The plan’s
defined benefit formula generally bases payments to retired employees upon their length of service multiplied by a per-

centage of the average monthly pay over the last five years of employment.

The following table presents (1) changes in the plan’s projected benefit obligation and plan assets, and (2) the plan’s funded
status reconciled with amounts recognized in the Corporation’s consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2002 and 2001:
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CHANGES IN PROJECTED BENEFIT OBLIGATION:

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost

Interest cost

Plan amendments

Actuarial loss

Benefits paid

2002

2001

$ 15,549,988
430,785
1,084,151
78,435
1,409,941
(915,515)

13,998,022
343,187
1,028,972
1,095,926
(916,119)

Projected benefit obligation at end of year $ 17,637,785 15,649,988

CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 18,198,375 198,355,021

Actual loss on plan assets (2,137,531) (203,033)

Expenses paid (47,614) (37,494)

Benefits paid (915,515) (916,119)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 15,097,815 18,198,375

(Unfunded) funded status $ (2,539,970) 2,648,387
Unrecognized net transition obligation being recognized over 10 years 350,238 420,126
Unrecognized prior service cost 643,658 646,575
Unrecognized net actuarial loss (gain) 2,415,539 (2,547,019)

Prepaid pension cost 3 869,465 1,168,069

Net periodic pension expense (income) in 2002, 2001 and 2000 was comprised of the following:

2002 2001 2000

Service cost, benefits earned during the year $ 430,785 343,187 297,927
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 1,084,151 1,028,972 990,817
Expected return on plan assets (1,331,901) (1,419,320) (1,499,853)
Net amortization and deferral 115,569 (147,563) (402,536)
Net periodic pension expense {income) $ 298,604 (194,724) (613,645)

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining the projected benefit obligation as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000 were as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Discount rate 6.50% 7.00% 7.50%
Expected long-term rate of return on assets 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
Assumed rate of future compensation increase 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

The pension plan's assets at December 31, 2002 and 2001, are invested in common and preferred stocks, U.S. Government
securities, corporate bonds and notes, and mutual funds.

The Corporation also sponsors a defined contribution profit sharing, savings and investment plan which covers all employ-
ees with a minimum of 1,000 hours of annual service. The Corporation makes discretionary profit sharing contributions to
the plan based on the financial results of the Corporation. The Corporation also makes matching contributions at the rate
of 50% of the first 6% of an eligible employee’s current earnings contributed to the plan. Expense under the plan totaled
$565,606, $687,724, and $681,193 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The plan’s assets at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, include 261,452 and 380,712 shares, respectively, of Chemung Financial Corporation common
stock, as well as common and preferred stocks, U.S. Government securities, corporate bonds and notes, and mutual funds.

The Corporation sponsors a defined benefit health care plan that provides postretirement medical, dental and prescription
drug benefits to full-time employees who meet minimum age and service requirements. Postretirement life insurance bene-
fits are also provided to certain employees who retired prior to July 1981. The plan is contributory, with retiree contributions
adjusted annually, and contains other cost sharing features such as deductibles and coinsurance. The accounting for the
plan anticipates future cost-sharing changes to the written plan that are consistent with the Corporation’s expressed intent
to increase the retiree contribution rate annually for the expected general inflation rate for that year.

The following table presents (1) changes in the plan’s accumulated postretirement benefit obligation and (2) the plan’s
funded status reconciled with amounts recognized in the Corporation’s consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2002
and 2001:




CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION: 2002 2001

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 3,069,672 2,440,417
Service cost 51,000 25,000
Interest cost 263,000 210,000
Participant contributions 98,819 97,059
Plan amendments 1,109,000 -
Actuarial loss 8,326 607,741
Benefits paid (291,301) (310,545)
Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at end of year $ 4,308,516 3,069,672

ACCRUED POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT COST:

Unfunded postretirement benefit obligation end of year $ (4,308,516) (3,069,672)
Unrecognized prior service cost 1,348,000 352,000
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 728,736 722,410

Accrued postretirement benefit cost at end of year, included in other liabilities $ (2,231,780) (1,995,262)

During 2002, the Corporation amended the postretirement plan to increase the maximum annual amount of benefits provid-
ed under the plan. This amendment resulted in a $1.1 million increase in the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation.
This unrecognized prior service cost will be amortized into net periodic postretirement benefit cost over the average period
to full eligibility of each participant active at the date of the amendment, who was not fully eligible for the benefits at that
date (approximately 13 years).

The components of net periodic post-retirement benefit cost for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 are
as follows:

2002 2001 2000

Service cost $ 51,000 25,000 23,000
Interest cost 263,000 210,000 181,000
Net amortization and deferral 115,000 47,000 28,000
Net periodic postretirement benefit cost $429,000 282,000 232,000

The postretirement benefit obligation was determined using a discount rate of 6.50% for 2002 and 7.00% for 2001. The
assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was 10.0% in
2002 and was assumed to decrease steadily 10 4.75% in 2009 and thereafter. The health care cost trend rate assumption can
have a significant effect on the amounts reported. If the health care cost trend rate was increased one percent in each year,
the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of December 31, 2002, would have increased by 4.0%, and the aggre-
gate of service and interest cost would have increased by 3.5%. If the health care cost trend rate was decreased one percent
in each year, the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of December 31, 2002, would have decreased by 4.1%,
and the aggregate of service and interest cost would have decreased by 3.8%. However, the plan limits the increase in the
Corporation’s annual contributions to the ptan for most participants to the increase in base compensation for active
employees.

The Corporation also sponsors an Executive Supplemental Pension Plan for certain current and former executive officers
to restore certain pension benefits that may be reduced due to limitations under the internal Revenue Code. The benefits
under this plan are unfunded and as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the projected benefit obligation was $607,600 and
$557,671, respectively. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Corporation had an accrued benefit liability of $383,698 and
$327,014, respectively, related to this plan. The Corporation recorded an expense of $77,605, $85,157 and $62,989 related
to this plan during 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Members of the Board of Directors, certain Corporation officers, and their immediate families directly, or through entities

in which they are principal owners (more than 10% interest), were customers of, and had loans and other transactions with,
the Corporation in the ordinary course of business. All loans and commitments included as part of such transactions were
made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable
transactions with other persons. These loans and commitments, which did not involve more than normal risk of collectibili-
ty or present other unfavorable features, are summarized as follows for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001:

2002 2001
Balance at beginning of year $ 16,166,974 15,034,221
New loans or additional advances 18,172,041 25,833,686
Repayments (19,240,697) (24,700,933)
Balance at end of year $ 15,098,318 16,166,974
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13. EXPENSES
The following expenses, which exceeded 1% of total revenues (total interest income plus other operating income) in at least
one of the years presented, are included in other operating expenses:

2002 2001 2000

Data processing services $2,751,182 2,812,299 2,176,368
Advertising 753,427 729,223 708,449
Amortization of core deposit intangible 397,719 397,719 397,719
Amortization of goodwill - 189,584 189,583

14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, there are outstanding various commitments and contingent liabilities, such as commit-
ments to extend credit, which are not reflected in the accompanying consclidated financial statements. Commitments to
outside parties under standby letters of credit, unused portions of lines of credit, and commitments to fund new loans
totaled $4,276,819, $122,449,408 and $4,659,585, respectively, at December 31, 2002. Commitments to outside parties under
standby letters of credit, unused portions of lines of credit, and commitments to fund new loans totaled $2,289,691,
$126,866,745 and $9,726,476, respectively, at December 31, 2001. Because many commitments and almost all standby let-
ters of credit expire without being funded in whole or in part, the contract amounts are not estimates of future cash flows.
Loan commitments and unused lines of credit have off-balance-sheet credit risk because only origination fees are recog-
nized on the consolidated halance sheet until commitments are fulfilled or expire. The credit risk amounts are equal to the
contractual amounts, assuming the amounts are fully advanced and collateral or other security is of no value. The Corpora-
tion does not anticipate losses as a result of these transactions. These commitments also have off-balance-sheet interest
rate risk in that the interest rate at which these commitments were made may not be at market rates on the date the com-
mitments are fulfilled.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45 ("FIN No. 45”), "Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others; an Interpretation of FASB State-
ments No. 5, 57, and 107 and rescission of FASB Interbretation No. 34.” FIN No. 45 requires certain new disclosures and
potential liability-recognition for the fair value at issuance of guarantees that fall within its scope. Under FIN No. 45, the
Corporation does not issue any guarantees that would require liability-recognition or disclosure, other than its standby

letters of credit.

The Corporation has issued conditional commitments in the form of standby letters of credit to guarantee payment on be-
half of a customer and guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. Standby letters of credit generally arise
in connection with lending refationships. The credit risk involved in issuing these instruments is essentially the same as
that involved in extending loans to customers. Contingent obligations under standby letters of credit totaled $4.277 million
at December 31, 2002, and represent the maximum potential future payments the Corporation could be required to make.
Typically, these instruments have terms of twelve months or less and expire unused; therefore, the total amounts do not
necessarily represent future cash requirements. Each customer is evaluated individually for creditworthiness under the
same underwriting standards used for commitments to extend credit and on-balance-sheet instruments. Corporation poli-
cies governing loan collateral apply to standby letters of credit at the time of credit extension. Loan-to-value ratios will gen-
erally range from 75% for movable assets, such as inventory, to 100% for liquid assets, such as bank CD’s. The carrying
amount and fair value of the Corporation’s standby letters of credit at December 31, 2002, was insignificant.

At December 31, 2002, the Corporation had outstanding commitments totaling $111,375 to fund equity investments in
Southern Tier Business Development, LLC.

The Corporation has employment contracts with certain of its senior officers, which expire at various dates through 2005
and may be extended on a year-to-year basis.

In the normal course of business, there are various outstanding legal proceedings involving the Corporation or its sub-
sidiaries. In the opinion of management, the aggregate amount invoived in such proceedings is not materia! to the financial
condition or results of operations of the Corporation.

15. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Under Federal Reserve regulations, the Bank is limited to the amount it may loan to the Corporation, unless such loans are
collateralized by specific obligations. At December 31, 2002, the maximum amount available for transfer from the Bank to
the Corporation in the form of unsecured loans was $1,800,396. The Bank is also subject to legal limitations on the amount
of dividends that can be paid to the Corporation without prior regulatory approval. Dividends are limited to retained net
profits, as defined by regulations, for the current year and the two preceding years. At December 31, 2002, approximately
$4.7 million was available for the declaration of dividends from the Bank to the Corporation.

16. PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Condensed parent company only financial statement information of Chemung Financial Corporation is as follows:




BALANCE SHEETS -~ DECEMBER 31 2002 2001

Assets:
Cash on deposit with subsidiary bank $ 1,138,010 1,015,508
Investment in subsidiary — Chemung Canal Trust Company 74,785,653 74,816,630
Investment in subsidiary — CFS Group, Inc. 193,561 204,858
Dividends receivable from subsidiary bank 868,831 911,772
Securities available for sale, at estimated fair value 158,570 154,044
Other assets 3,215,201 3,004,165
Total assets $ 80,359,726 80,106,977
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity:
Dividends payable 868,831 911,772
Other liabilities 63,718 33,628
Total liabilities 932,549 945,400
Shareholders’ equity:
Total shareholders’ equity 79,427,177 79,161,577
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 80,359,726 80,106,977
STATEMENTS OF INCOME - YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2002 2001 2000
Dividends from subsidiary bank $ 9,049,418 5,083,798 4,918,121
Interest and dividend income 14,699 87,215 88,450
Net gain on sales of securities - 60,000 -
Other income (loss) 180,277 (270,166) 216,277
Operating expenses (108,001) (105,181} (96,989}
Income before impact of subsidiaries’ earnings and distributions and
income taxes 9,136,393 4,855,666 5,125,859
Distributions from Chemung Canal Trust Company in excess of earnings (2,607,829) - -
Equity in undistributed earnings of Chemung Canal Trust Company - 3,678,823 3,692,888
Equity in losses of CFS Group, Inc. (11,297) (45,142) -
Income before income tax benefit/expense 6,517,267 8,389,347 8,818,747
Income tax benefit (expense) 22,626 103,905 (63,648)
Net Income $ 6,539,893 8,493,252 8,755,099
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2002 2001 2000
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net Income $ 6,539,893 8,493,252 8,755,099

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Distributions from Chemung Canal Trust Company in excess of earnings 2,607,829 - -
Equity in undistributed earnings of Chemung Canal Trust Company - (3,578,823) (3,692,888)
Equity in losses of CFS Group, Inc. 11,297 45,142 -
Net gain on sales of securities - (60,000} -
Decrease {increase) in dividend receivable 42,941 (25,043} 62,528
Increase in other assets (212,699) (581,442) (234,515)
Increase in other liabilities 32,429 6,286 18,238
Distribution of employee stock bonus 8,415 - -
Distribution of restricted stock units for directors’
deferred compensation plan 17,386 16,845 106,883
Net cash provided by operating activities 9,047,491 4,316,217 5,015,345
Cash flow from investing activities:
Investment in CFS Group, Inc. - - (250,000)
Proceeds from sale of securities available for sale - 1,060,000 -
Purchase of securities available for sale - - (49,992)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities - 1,060,000 (299,992)
Cash flow from financing activities:
Cash dividends paid (3,592,359) (3,658,754) (3,435,952)
Purchase of treasury stock (5,332,630) (2,343,383) (397,113)
Sale of treasury stock - 629,471 -
Net cash used in financing activities (8,924,989) (5,272,666) (3,833,065)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 122,502 103,551 882,288
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,015,508 911,957 29,669

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 1,138,010 1,015,508 911,957
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17. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments:

SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
For those short-term instruments that generally mature in ninety days or less, the carrying value approximates fair value.

SECURITIES

Fair values for securities are based on either 1) quoted market prices, 2) dealer quotes, 3) a correspondent bank’s pricing
system, or 4) discounted cash flows to maturity. For certain securities, such as equity investments in the FHLB and Federal
Reserve Bank, and non-marketable obligations of political subdivisions, fair value is estimated to approximate amortized
cost.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently, fair values approximate carrying values. The fair values for other loans are
estimated through discounted cash-flow analysis using interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms
and credit quality.

DEPOSITS
The fair values disclosed for demand deposits, savin.gs accounts and money market accounts are, by definition, equal to
the amounts payable on demand at the reporting date (i.e., their carrying values).

The fair value of certificates of deposits is estimated using a discounted cash flow approach that applies interest rates cur-
rently being offered on certificates to a schedule of the weighted-average expected monthly maturities.

SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE (REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS)
These instruments bear both variable and fixed rates of interest. Therefore, the carrying value approximates fair value for
the variable rate instruments and the fair value of fixed-rate instruments is based on discounted cash flows to maturity.

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES
These instruments bear a stated rate of interest to maturity and, therefore, the fair value is based on discounted cash flows

to maturity.

COMMITMENTS TC EXTEND CREDIT

The fair value of commitments to extend credit is based on fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements, the
counter-party’s credit standing and discounted cash flow analysis. The fair value of these commitments to extend credit
approximates the recorded amounts of the related fees and is not material at December 31, 2002 and 2001.

ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE
For these short-term instruments, the carrying value approximates fair value.

The estimated fair value of the Corporation’s financial instruments as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, are as follows
{dollars in thousands):

2002 2001
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
FINANCIAL ASSETS: Amount Fair Value™" Amount Fair Value "
Cash and due from banks $ 28,837 28,837 29,023 29,023
Interest-bearing deposits 1,215 1,215 1,358 1,358
Securities 264,989 265,339 246,253 246,455
Net loans 424,620 437,102 418,677 434,981
Accrued interest receivable 3,562 3,562 4,363 4,363
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
Deposits:
Demand, savings, and insured
money market accounts $ 320,328 320,328 290,771 290,771
Time deposits 221,437 226,791 229,916 233,514
Repurchase agreements 78,661 82,612 79,457 81,574
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 40,750 41,767 37,600 38,109
Accrued interest payable 1,482 1,482 2,107 2,107
Dividends payable 869 869 912 912

(1) Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market information and information about the financial instrument.
These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgement and, therefore, cannot be determined with
precision. Changes ir assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.




18. REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS .

The Corporation and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory — and possibly additional discre-
tionary — actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect-on the consolidated financial state-
ments. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet
specific capital guidelines that involve gquantitative measures of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet
items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classifications are also subject to quali-
tative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Corporation and the Bank to main-
tain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets, and of
Tier 1 capital-to-average assets (all as defined in the applicable regulations). Management believes that, as of December 31,
2002 and 2001, the Corporation and the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which they were subject.

As of December 31, 2002, the most recent notification from the Federal Reserve Bank of New York categorized the Bank as
well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized, as well as capitalized, the
Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table below.
There have been no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the Bank's or the
Corporation’s capital category.

The actual capital amounts and ratios of the Corporation and the Bank are presented in the following table:

Actual Capital Required Ratios
Minimum Classification
Capital as Well
Amount Ratio Adequacy Capitalized
As of December 31, 2002
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets):
Consolidated $76,223,377 16.12% 8.00% 10.00%
Bank $71,645,475 15.25% 8.00% 10.00%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets):
Consolidated $67,750,969 14.33% 4.00% 6.00%
Bank $63,133,393 13.45% 4.00% 6.00%
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets):
Consolidated $67,750,969 9.26% 3.00% 5.00%
Bank $63,133,393 8.67% 3.00% 5.00%
As of December 31, 2001
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets):
Consolidated $77,523,117 16.87% 8.00% 10.00%
Bank $73,183,569 16.04% 8.00% 10.00%
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets):
Consolidated $69,5633,164 15.13% 4.00% 6.00%
Bank $65,209,403 14.29% 4.00% 6.00%
Tier 1 Capital {to Average Assets):
Consolidated $69,533,164 9.86% 3.00% 5.00%
Bank $65,209,403 9.30% 3.00% 5.00%
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